## **ANNUAL REPORT 2013**





Centre for Heart Lung Innovation UBC and St. Paul's Hospital



a place of mind The UNIVERSITY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA



## At A Glance



Centre for Heart Lung Innovation UBC and St. Paul's Hospital

Established:	1977 by Drs. Jim Hogg and Peter Pare
Director:	Dr. Keith Walley
Associate Directors:	Dr. Gordon Francis
	Dr. Tillie-Louise Hackett
Principal Investigators:	33
Associate Members:	16
Research Associates:	10
Visiting Scientists:	5
Post-Doctoral Fellows:	17
Graduate Students:	52
Other Students:	60
PI Staff:	56
Core/Operations Staff:	32
TOTAL :	281
Funding in FY 2012-13:	\$10,969,776.07
Funding in FY 2013-14:	\$8,408,159.57 to Feb. 28, 2014
Space:	over 50,000 square feet
Biotech / Spin off companies:	5 since 2001
CORE facilities include: Molecular Phenotyping (genomics, Microscopy (transmission electron multiphoton microscopy) Histology (tissue processing, section Genetically Engineered Models (GE Shared platforms include: Registry – Cardiovascular & Pulmon Cell Models Technology Development Biobanking Clinical research office IT Services Database support services	proteomics, florescence activated cell sorting) microscopy, atomic force microscopy, confocal and ning, and immuno staining) M Preclinical Facility)

## **Table of Contents**

1. About the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation	4
2. Message from the Director	5
3. Research Highlights	6
4. New Principal Investigators	12
5. Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Principal Investigators	14
6. Recognizing Research Excellence – Investigator Awards	15
7. Research Funding	16
8. Peer Reviewed Publications	17
9. Training the Next Generation	19
a. Trainee Awards	21
10. Centre Operational Highlights	23
a. CORE Services – What we can do for you	23
b. Facility Users	25
11. Communicating Our Results	26
12. Next Steps	28
13. Partnerships	28
14. Supporting Our Fight Against Heart and Lung Diseases	29
15. Appendices-	
a. Appendix A - Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Publications for 2013	30
<ul> <li>b. Appendix B - Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Grants, Contracts, Clinical Trials and Agreements 2013; to February 28, 2014</li> </ul>	42
c. Appendix C - Centre for Heart Lung Innovation 2013 Friday Seminar Series	62
<ul> <li>Appendix D - Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Research In Progress Seminar Series 2013</li> </ul>	66

## About the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation

The Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI) (also named James Hogg Research Centre) is a University of British Columbia (UBC) Senate-approved Centre of Cardiovascular, Pulmonary, and Critical Care expertise, housed within Providence Health Care - St Paul's Hospital. The HLI dual reporting structure is shown below in **Figure 1.** This ensures that the research conducted within the HLI adheres to both the UBC Strategic Research Plan and aligns with Providence Health Care populations of emphasis in heart, lung and aging.

Figure 1. Governance structure with the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation.



The management structure under the HLI Executive involves a team approach led by Principal Investigators, Operations staff and the Technology Cores (**Figure 2**). **Figure 2.** Management reporting structure of the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI)



## **Message from the Director**

Dear Colleagues,

What a whirlwind year it has been! This 2013 Annual Report highlights the scientific achievements of the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI) scientific leaders and trainees and updates you on operational changes since my appointment began January 1, 2013. I would also like to take this opportunity to thank Dr. Darryl Knight for his exemplary leadership of the Centre until I arrived.



Our successes as a world-class research facility continue with the release of 157 publications and receipt of \$8,408,159.57 in funding for fiscal 2013/2014 to date. We have rebranded the Centre to simplify our fundraising goals, restructured internal teams, overhauled existing policies and procedures and began the implementation of our third Canada Foundation for Innovation award. This large federal award will provide us with a much needed renovation of the remaining original laboratory space on the first floor and new technology to advance our scientific programs; all important endeavours in the race against cardiovascular/pulmonary/critical care disease.

The Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI) scientists, trainees and staff would like to thank our funding partners: Canada Foundation for Innovation, British Columbia Knowledge Development Fund, Providence Health Care, University of British Columbia, Heart and Stroke Foundation of BC & Yukon, BC Lung Association, the St Paul's Hospital Foundation and many vendors and industrial collaborators, for their crucial support of our ongoing programs.

We are proud of our progress to date and look forward an equally successful 2014.

With kind regards,

Link Walley

Keith R. Walley, MD Director, Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI) Professor of Medicine, UBC Associate Director ICU, St. Paul's Hospital

## **Research Highlights**

### Improving outcomes for patients with severe infections

Members of the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation are pursuing an exciting new lead that will make a tangible difference in the lives of patients with severe infections. In these individuals, bacteria and other infectious organisms trigger an injurious inflammatory response because our bodies react to lipid (fat-related) molecules released from the infectious organism's cell walls. Our liver cells normally get rid of fat-related molecules (like cholesterol lipids) by using cholesterol receptors on the surface of liver cells. PCSK9 is a molecule produced by our bodies that gets in the way of this normal lipid clearance mechanism so that, very recently, many scientists and drug companies have developed drugs that inhibit PCSK9, resulting in increased clearance of cholesterol lipid. **Drs. Jim Russell, John Boyd, and Keith Walley** have found early evidence that inhibition of PCSK9 also increases the clearance of infectious organism lipids and appears to reduce the inflammatory response to severe infection. Their data suggest that decreased PCSK9 (the hot new lipid-lowering drug class) activity increases pathogen lipid clearance. These scientists are eager to determine exactly how PCSK9 inhibition does this so that knowledge can be applied to improve patient outcomes. (Source: 2012-2013 Research Annual Report | UBC Faculty of Medicine)

### microRNAs: Potential targets for antiviral drug development for heart disease

Virally caused heart disease called myocarditis (heart muscle cell injury) is one of the common heart diseases, particularly in children, young adults, and pregnant women. Coxsackie virus, a virus that was discovered in a small town called Coxsackie near New York City, is the primary causal agent of viral myocarditis. This virus can infect multiple organs of humans, but the degrees of infection are different. For example, heart and pancreas can be easily infected by this virus and develop deadly diseases shortly after infection, particularly in the heart. However, kidney and lung are hardly infected by this virus. This phenomenon cannot be explained very well with current knowledge. Dr. Decheng Yang and his team are actively searching for the genes or molecules in the body that determine why Coxsackie virus can easily infect the heart but not the kidney. Recently, a group of small genetic molecules called microRNAs (miRNA) has been found to play an important role in controlling virus infection in different types of diseases. They suspected that miRNAs may control the degree of easiness of infection in different organs, such as the heart and kidney. To test this hypothesis, they performed research to evaluate the miRNA production in different cell cultures and heart of mice after coxackievirus B3 (CVB3) infection. They found that several important miRNAs either produced a lot (upregulated) or produced a little (downregulated). With further testing their results suggest that upregulated miR-126 during CVB3 infection varies targeting preferences at different stages, enabling a single microRNA to support the viral infection by targeting multiple genes. To the best of their knowledge, this study is the first report on the signal networking among miR-126, SPRED1, LRP6 and WRCH1 in CVB3 infection. The findings (published in Cellular and Molecular Life Sciences, June 30, 2013) will greatly improve the understanding of CVB3-host interactions, especially how the virus hijacks host small RNA molecules to benefit its own replication and cause heart damage, and show huge potential for the development of antiviral drugs that can target the microRNAs. (Source: 2012-2013 Research Annual Report | UBC Faculty of Medicine)

### Biomarkers bring hope for heart transplant patients

Heart transplant patients know the risks. At least half of them are at risk for developing cardiac allograft vasculopathy (CAV), a "hardening of the arteries" process that can especially develop after the first year post transplant. Current screening involves the use of coronary angiography or intravascular ultrasound; invasive, expensive, and risky procedures. The Biomarker in Transplantation Team from the Centre of Excellence for Prevention of Organ Failure (PROOF Centre) led by **Dr. Bruce McManus** is keen to find another way - a less invasive blood test - to answer the same question. Recently this multidisciplinary team has identified an 18-plasma protein biomarker classifier panel that was able to classify and identify patients with angiographically significant coronary artery stenosis in transplanted hearts. The biomarkers identified may also help improve our understanding of CAV pathophysiology. This new minimally invasive test is promising news for all transplant patients. In collaboration with clinical leaders, scientists, and pharmaceutical and medical device companies, the PROOF Centre's goal is to accelerate development of these cost-effective biomarker-based blood tests and bring them to market as soon as possible. (Source: 2012-2013 Research Annual Report | UBC Faculty of Medicine)

### Granzyme B – An essential enzyme for wound healing and repair

As we age, our ability to repair tissues is reduced. Healing is further impaired by factors such as smoking, obesity, immobility, cardiovascular disease and diabetes. Dr. David Granville's laboratory has been investigating how such factors affect chronic inflammation and how this dysregulated immune cell accumulation orchestrates tissue damage and impedes tissue repair. In their search for factors, his team identified an enzyme known as Granzyme B that degrades structural proteins known as extracellular matrix proteins that are critical for normal wound healing to proceed. When these proteins are degraded by Granzyme B, wounds do not close properly. In diseases associated with age, smoking, diabetes and chronic inflammation, Granzyme B is abundant. Further, Granzyme B inhibition results in a marked improvement in tissue repair and integrity in models of aortic aneurysm, diabetic wound healing and aging. Dr. Granville's research program has led to the formation of the UBC spin-off company, viDA Therapeutics, that is working with him to develop novel therapeutics against Granzyme B that will be used initially for the treatment of non-healing skin ulcers including diabetic skin ulcers and pressure ulcers. Non-healing skin wounds affect approximately 20-25% of patients in hospitals and long-term care facilities and costs are estimated at \$4-6 billion per year in North America alone. Led by Mr. Alistair Duncan, CEO, viDA Therapeutics, viDA has successfully completed two venture-capital-led financings which has allowed them to attract a highly experienced Board of Directors, management team and highly skilled scientific team, including 12 full-time employees. In collaboration with Dr. Granville, viDA is developing and testing lead

compounds in models of impaired wound healing and other inflammatory disorders that will hopefully be used one day in the future to eliminate such devastating conditions that are in dire need of better treatment options.

### Statins: A novel treatment in subjects with COPD

Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease or COPD (emphysema and chronic bronchitis) is an inflammatory condition of the lung that slowly destroys the lung tissue and makes it hard to breath. Recently **Dr. Stephan van Eeden's** group showed that statins, a common drug used by physicians to lower blood cholesterol, reduces the type of inflammation in the lung that is associated with COPD. This opens the door to the use of statins as a novel treatment in patients with COPD to prevent disease progression and prevent "lung attacks", a common complication of COPD. In addition, this research showed that statins reduce blood vessel activation and reduces atherosclerosis, the commonest cause for heart attacks and stroke; conditions frequently associated with COPD. This research was done in an animal model and is now being tested in humans. This potential new treatment for subjects with COPD could potentially improve quality of life and lower mortality in patients suffering from COPD.

### Canada Research Chair in Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD)

**Dr. Don Sin,** the country's first Tier 1 Canada Research Chair in COPD, is committed to fighting the global epidemic of this disease and bringing new solutions to millions of Canadians who suffer from it. His team will be working to increase awareness of COPD by public and health care professionals. Most importantly, they plan to develop and implement a simple blood test to diagnose lung attacks—the main reasons for hospitalizations and deaths related to COPD—at their earliest stages. By enabling early intervention with effective therapies that already exist, this approach has tremendous potential to reduce patient symptoms and prevent hospitalizations and deaths. (Source: 2012-2013 Research Annual Report | UBC Faculty of Medicine)

### A novel inhibitor for the treatment for virus-induced heart failure

Viral myocarditis, the most common cause of heart failure in children and young adults worldwide, is caused by the viral infection of heart muscle. In many cases, viral myocarditis is attributable to enteroviral infection, and in particular to Coxsackie virus infection. The only definitive treatment for virus-induced damage of the heart is heart transplantation. **Dr. Honglin Luo** and her research team strive to develop new therapies to treat this disease. Serum response factor (SRF), a muscle-enriched protein, is known to play a central role in heart development and function. It regulates the gene levels of heart proteins which control the contraction of the heart. Destruction of SRF has been associated with several heart diseases. Dr. Luo and her team have recently found that Coxsackie virus infection led to a cleavage and subsequent dysfunction of SRF in the heart. They further demonstrate that cleavage of SRF during virus infection plays an important role in the progression of the disease to heart failure.

Most excitingly, they have recently developed a chemical inhibitor based on the identified SRF cleavage site to prevent the cleavage of SRF. Their findings will facilitate the development of novel therapeutic agents to protect against viral myocarditis and the progression to heart failure.

### **Comparative Data**

The Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI); listed as the *James Hogg RC* below in **Figure 3** was successful in attracting 12% of all of the UBC Faculty of Medicine funding for 2012/2013.

**Figure 3.** Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI) funding in relation to other UBC Faculty of Medicine Research Centres in 2012/2012.

## 2012-13 Faculty of Medicine Research Funding, by Research Centre



Source: UBC Faculty of Medicine

**Figure 4** below represents the contribution of the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI) cardiac and cardiovascular system research publications in the ranking in comparison to other national facilities.

**Figure 4.** Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI) cardiac and cardiovascular system research publications support the University of British Columbia high ranking in comparison to other national facilities.

### Comparison of Field-Weighted Citation Impact in Cardiac and Cardiovascular Systems



Source: UBC Faculty of Medicine

From: InCites TM, Thomson Reuters (2012). Source of data: Thomson Reuters Web of Science



Likewise, **Figure 5** represents the contribution of the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI) respiratory system research publications in the University of British Columbia ranking in comparison to other national facilities.

**Figure 5.** Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI) respiratory system research publications support the University of British Columbia ranking in comparison to other national facilities.

## Comparison of Field-Weighted Citation Impact in Respiratory System



Source: UBC Faculty of Medicine

From: InCites TM, Thomson Reuters (2012). Source of data: Thomson Reuters Web of Science



## **New Principal Investigators**

### Jordan A. Guenette, PhD

Assistant Professor, Department of Physical Therapy, University of British Columbia



Dr. Guenette received his BHK (2004), MSc (2006) and PhD (2010) in Exercise and Respiratory Physiology in the School of Kinesiology at the University of British Columbia. His graduate training was conducted in the Health and Integrative Physiology Laboratory under the mentorship of Dr. A. William Sheel. Dr. Guenette received additional research training in Cardiovascular and Respiratory Physiology at the Copenhagen Muscle Research Centre (University of Copenhagen) and in the Department of Critical Care Medicine and Pulmonary Services (University of Athens). Following his graduate training, Dr. Guenette completed a postdoctoral fellowship (2012) in clinical exercise physiology in the Department of Medicine at Queen's University under the mentorship of Dr. Denis E. O'Donnell.

The primary aim of Dr. Guenette's research program is to better understand the physiological factors that limit exercise tolerance across the spectrum of health and chronic lung disease. The lab uses a number of novel measurement techniques to simultaneously assess the respiratory, cardiovascular, muscular and neuro-physiological responses to exercise. The long term goal of this research program is to develop more effective rehabilitation interventions to improve exercise performance and quality of life for those suffering from chronic lung diseases.

His research is funded by the CIHR, BC Lung Association, Providence Health Care Research Institute, St. Paul's Hospital Foundation, NSERC, Canada Foundation for Innovation, BC Knowledge Development Fund and UBC Department of Physical Therapy.



Source: Guenette Lab website

### Tillie-Louise Hackett, Ph.D.

Assistant Professor, Department of Anesthesiology, Pharmacology and Therapeutics,



Dr. Hackett received her BSc. (2002) in Biochemistry and Pharmacology and her Ph.D. (2006) in Cellular and Biological Sciences from the University of Southampton, in the UK under the mentorship of Dr. J.A. Warner and Prof. S.T. Holgate. In 2006, Dr Hackett joined the James Hogg Research Centre at the University of British Columbia, Canada funded by a Canadian Institutes for Health, Canadian Lung Association and Michael Smith Foundation for Health Research post doctoral fellowships with Drs D.A. Knight and T. Bai. Dr. Hackett then undertook additional postdoctoral training at the University Medical Centre Groningen funded by the European Respiratory Society, with Prof. D.S. Postma and Dr. H.I. Heijink.

Dr Hackett's research program is focused on understanding

the disruption of normal repair processes within the epithelial-mesenchymal trophic unit (EMTU) of the lung and how this propagates inflammation and tissue remodeling in patients with obstructive lung disease. Her laboratory uses an innovative and targeted approach to isolate cells from donor lungs guided by Computed Tomography imaging. This resource, The Human Lung Cell Repository, aims to provide highly characterized cells representative of a variety of lung disease states and healthy individuals for use in clinical bio-assays of disease. The goal of this research program is to further understand the airway microenvironment to determine therapeutic targets to prevent the initiation and perpetuation of pathological processes which contribute to obstructive airway diseases like asthma and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease.

Her research is funded by the Canadian Institutes for Health Research, Canadian Lung Association, Parker B. Francis Foundation, Providence Health Care Research Institute and UBC Faculty of Medicine.



Source: Hackett Lab website

## Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Principal Investigators

#### (click on name to view profile)

Dr. Michael Allard	Dr. Bruce McManus
Dr. Pascal Bernatchez	Dr. Raymond Ng
Dr. John Boyd	Dr. Peter Pare
Dr. Pat Camp	Dr. James Russell
Dr. Harvey Coxson	Dr. Chris Ryerson
Dr. Denise Daley	Dr. Andrew Sandford
Dr. Del Dorscheid	Dr. Bob Schellenberg
Dr. Gordon Francis	Dr. Chun Seow
Dr. Jiri Frohlich	Dr. Don Sin
Dr. David Granville	Dr. Wan Tan-Hogg
Dr. Jordan Guenette	Dr. Scott Tebbutt
Dr. Tillie-Louise Hackett	Dr. Stephan van Eeden
Dr. John Hill	Dr. David Walker
Dr. James Hogg	Dr. Keith Walley
Dr. Honglin Luo	Dr. Pearce Wilcox
Dr. Paul Man	Dr. Decheng Yang



Aortic smooth muscle cell

Airway



Airway epithelial cell cilia

## Recognizing Research Excellence – Investigator Awards



Brian Smith photography courtesy of St. Paul's Hospital Foundation

HLI investigators have been successful in competing for a number of awards in 2013. Here are some highlights:

- On May 10, 2013, a special event was held in honour of Dr. James Hogg and his stellar career as a leader, researcher and educator. At the event Dr. Hogg, received the 2013 Canada Gairdner Wightman Award; the premier award for leadership in medical science in Canada.
   Please see links below for more information: <u>UBC Media Release</u> <u>UBC Department of Medicine Release</u> <u>Gairdner Website Release</u> A video of this presentation is available for viewing at http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NKH6kOFC0J8
- **Dr. David Walker** received the "Philip E. Reid Memorial Cup Award" from the Department of Pathology and laboratory Medicine. This Award was given as recognition to a faculty member who demonstrated excellence and outstanding contributions to the Department and its students in a given year. Clinical and academic faculty members of the Department were selected from top-ranked individuals identified through the annual Departmental Merit review as well as by nomination. Since 1983, Dr. Walker has been teaching courses like Pathology 305 (Microscopy course) in the Bachelor of Medical Laboratory Sciences Program (BMLSc) and other ones in the Department. He also played the role as a valuable graduate students' advisor for many years.
- **Dr. Don Sin,** Canada Research Chair in Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) and Head, Division of Respiratory Medicine, Providence Health Care, was recently ranked as the second leading COPD expert in the world by Expertscape.com, a medical search and ranking website that ranks physicians, clinicians and researchers worldwide

using a PubMed-based algorithm. Dr. Sin's research interests include finding new solutions to reduce the growing burden of COPD in Canada by discovering a simple blood test to diagnose acute lung attacks early in their course and new therapies to treat COPD-related co-morbidities such as cardiovascular disease.

- Congratulations to **Dr. Chris Ryerson**, the 2013 recipient of the Dr. W. Thurlbeck Fellowship and the Grzybowski Fellowship in Respiratory Medicine.
- Congratulations to **Dr.Don Sin** on his appointment as a Canada Research Chair Tier 1 and also to **Dr. Denise Daley** on her Canada Research Chair Tier 2 renewal.



Brian Smith photography courtesy of St. Paul's Hospital Foundation

## **Research Funding**

During fiscal year 2012 – 2013, the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Investigators were successful in attracting \$10,969,776.07 in research grants and contracts.

Available data for fiscal year 2013 – 2014, up to February 28, 2014, indicates that the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Investigators were successful in attracting \$8,408,159.57 in research grants and contracts.

Details about the 2013 Centre for Heart Lung Innovation funding can be found in Appendix A.

## **Peer Reviewed Publications**

The Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Investigators and students produced **157** publications in 2013. The 7 year trend of publications can be seen below.



Full details about the 2013 Centre for Heart Lung Innovation publications can be found in **Appendix B.** 

The Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI); was also instrumental in the marked increase of citations from University of British Columbia cardiac and cardiovascular system publications. Papers such as: <u>Boyd, JH</u>; Forbes, J; Nakada, TA; <u>Walley, KR</u>; <u>Russell, JA</u>; Fluid resuscitation in septic shock: A positive fluid balance and elevated central venous pressure are associated with increased mortality, published in Critical Care Medicine in 2011 was cited 100 times. (Citation counts are as of November 14, 2013.)

### Recent High-Impact Papers Published by Faculty of Medicine Investigators - Heart & Lung Health

Article Title	Authors	Journal Title	Year Published	Impact Factor of Journal	Total Citations
Fluid resuscitation in septic shock: A positive fluid balance and elevated central venous pressure are associated with increased mortality	<u>Boyd, JH</u> ; Forbes, J; Nakada, TA; <u>Walley, KR</u> ; <u>Russell, JA</u>	CRITICAL CARE MEDICINE	2011	6.330	100
Small-Airway Obstruction and Emphysema in Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease	McDonough, JE; Yuan, R; Suzuki, M; Seyednejad, N; Elliott, WM; Sanchez, PG; Wright, AC; Gefter, WB; Litzky, L; <u>Coxson, HO</u> ; <u>Pare, PD</u> ; <u>Sin, DD</u> ; Pierce, RA; Woods, JC; <u>McWilliams, AM</u> ; <u>Mayo,</u> JR; <u>Lam, SC</u> ; Cooper, JD; <u>Hogg, JC</u>	NEW ENGLAND JOURNAL OF MEDICINE	2011	53.298	72

Data from: Thomson Reuters *Web of Science*, Version 5.12. Citation counts are as of November 14, 2013

Source: UBC Faculty of Medicine

## **Training the Next Generation**

### **Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Summer Student Research Program**



Throughout the year, numerous undergraduate students are trained at the Centre for Heart Lung Innovation through co-operative education programs, directed studies programs or various employment opportunities. Our busiest time of year is May to August when 25 - 35 undergraduate students participate in our summer student research program. Students are mentored by a senior professor and an immediate supervisor, and gain hands-on basic science laboratory experience while working on a research project. Not only does each student learn, in detail, one or two technologies per 4-month or 8-month fellowship, but, more importantly for this formative period of development, students learn the critical logic of complementary technologies and when to employ them to experimental advantage.

From May to August, students participate in a research in progress seminar series and attend professional development seminars as well as Pathology 521 (the Introduction to the Pathogenesis of Human Disease) course lectures. In addition to technical and intellectual training, students learn to present their original work at the end-of-summer Student Research Day, a one day conference featuring both oral and poster presentations by student researchers. This integrated program, that includes the ability to perform novel and innovative technologies, will provide our next generation of scientific leaders with a wide range of career options.

### 2013 Summer Student Research Day Winners:

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1 <sup>st</sup> Place Oral Presentation:	Kevin Lee (Hackett Lab)
2 <sup>nd</sup> Place Oral Presentation:	Brice Aminou (Pare Lab)
3 <sup>rd</sup> Place Oral Presentation:	Devyn Parsons (Walley Lab)
Honourable Mention:	Jari Ullah (Hackett Lab)
Honourable Mention:	Damian Kayra (Dorscheid Lab)

1 <sup>st</sup> Place Poster Presentation:	Paulina Piesik (Luo Lab)
2 <sup>nd</sup> Place Poster Presentation:	Brian Cho (Yang Lab)
3 <sup>rd</sup> Place Poster Presentation:	Rayleigh Chan (Bernatchez Lab)
Honourable Mention:	Amanda Cunningham (Jackson Lab (CBR))

### **IMPACT**

The Integrated and Mentored Pulmonary and Cardiovascular Training (IMPACT) program is a CIHR supported strategic training program at the University of British Columbia and the University of Manitoba. The IMPACT program provides funding to high quality clinical and basic science post-doctoral fellows and gives these fellows the opportunity to join focused teams of researchers in unique multidisciplinary research groups. In 2013, the IMPACT program provided funding to 13 postdoctoral fellows. 8 of these fellows were located at the University of British Columbia and 5 were located at the University of Manitoba.

IMPACT is helping train the next generation of investigators capable of developing and translating knowledge from bench to bedside with the outcome of improved cardio-pulmonary health status of the Canadian population.



### **HLI Weekly Seminars**

The Centre for Heart Lung Innovation holds two weekly seminars, the Research in Progress Seminar Series and the HLI Friday Seminar Series, both of which run from September through June each year.

The HLI Friday Seminar series involves the invitation of experts in specific fields from the all over the world to give talks which encourage education and collaboration. Detailed information about the 2013 HLI Friday Seminars can be found in **Appendix C.** Sponsors for this seminar series include the HLI Principle Investigators, the UBC Faculty of Medicine, BC Lung Association, Heart and Stroke Foundation of BC & Yukon.

The Research In Progress seminar series gives the graduate students and post-doctoral fellows at HLI the opportunity to present their "research in progress" to other HLI researchers. The idea behind these seminars is for a critical, but supportive audience to give feedback at the conceptual or analytic stage of the trainees' research program. Detailed information about the 2013 Research in Progress Seminars can be found in **Appendix D**.

## **Trainee Awards**

### IHLH Heart + Lung Health FEST 2013



#### Source: IHLH

#### **Congratulations to:**

Cardiovascular Graduate Category: Jinelle Gelinas, **Seti Boroomand** 

Cardiovascular PDF/RA Category: Sahana Suresh

Pulmonary Grad Category: Cleo Leung, Aabida Saferali

Pulmonary PDF/RA Category: Dragos Vasilescu

Those selected were invited to speak to the FEST Scientific Symposium about their research in a five minute oral presentation. Their presentations provided a small glimpse into the vast range of research topics the next generation of scientists are investigating.

Source: IHLH

### Dr. Jeremy Hirota awarded Banting Fellowship



The Canadian Banting Postdoctoral Fellowship program is awarded annually to 70 outstanding postdoctoral candidates. Each two-year fellowship is valued at \$140,000.00.

Further details can be found at: <u>http://www.heartandlung.ca/dr-jeremy-hirota-awarded-</u> <u>banting-fellowship/</u>

Source: IHLH

The following trainees also received awards during 2013.

First Name	Last Name	Title	Awarding Body
Gabriel	Fung	Poster Presentation Award	CIHR/ICRH YI Forum 2013
Gabriel	Fung	Graduate Award	Faculty of Medicine, UBC
Kunihiko	Hiraiwa	Fellowship	Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)
Jeremy	Hirota	International Trainee Research Visit Award	AllerGen NCE Inc.
Jeremy	Hirota	Canada Banting Fellowship	Government of Canada
lvy	Hsu	Diabetic Wound Healing Award	UBC Dermatology Research Day
lvy	Hsu	UBC 4 Year Doctoral Fellowship (4YF)	University of British Columbia
Daisuke	Kinose	Karl K. Pump Fellowship	Lung Association
Miranda	Kirby	Bisby Fellowship	Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)
Miranda	Kirby	Post-doctoral Award	Michael Smith Foundation for Health Research (MSFHR)
Cleo	Leung	First Prize Poster Award at Genomics Forum and Poster Competition	Genome BC
Janice	Leung	Post-doctoral Award	Michael Smith Foundation for Health Research (MSFHR)
Maen	Obeidat	Post-doctoral Award	Michael Smith Foundation for Health Research (MSFHR)
Leigh	Parkinson	MITACS Accelerate Post-Doctoral Fellowship	MITACS
Ye	Qiu	International Tuition Award	
Ye	Qiu	Graduate Award	Faculty of Medicine, UBC
Bradley	Quon	Clinician Scientist Award	Cystic Fibrosis of Canada
Amritpal	Singh	Institute Community Support Travel Award	Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)
Amritpal	Singh	Third Prize Poster Award at Genomics Forum and Poster Competition	Genome BC
Marc	Sze	Studentship	Canadian Thoracic Society Research Committee of the Lung Association
Anthony	Tam	Tuition Award	UBC Graduate studies
Dragos	Vasilescu	Postdoctoral Fellowship	ІМРАСТ
Dragos	Vasilescu	Fellowship	Canadian Thoracic Society Research Committee of the Lung Association

## **Centre Operational Highlights**

Centre for Heart Lung Innovation What we can do for you



Centre for Heart Lung Innovation UBC and St. Paul's Hospital

## The Centre for Heart Lung Innovation technicians have extensive training and experience to ensure that results are consistent and reliable with minimal turnover time.

**Digital Slide Scanning Service** 

magnification

Sectioning

Histology

.

Aperio ScanScope XT: brightfield scanner that digitizes whole microscope slides at 20x and 40x

Processing and Embedding

Immunohistochemistry

Immuno-alkaline phosphatase

FITC immunofluorescence

in situ Hybridization (ISH)

**Molecular Phenotyping & Genotyping** 

Beckman Coulter MoFlo® High

Laser Capture Microdissection Pixcell II

Beckman Coulter EpicsXL-MCL

Immuno-peroxidase

**TUNEL** Staining

Speed Cell Sorter

Abbott Cell Dyn 3700

Miltenyi AutoMACS

#### Some of our services, equipment and tools are:

#### Biobank

- Tissue and sample archiving
- Specimens for collaborative research
- Gross specimen photography

#### **Cellular Imaging & Biophysics**

- Automatic Tissue Processing Capabilities
- MicroCT services in 2014
- Tecnai 12 Transmission Electron Microscope
- Bioscope Atomic Force Microscope
   with Nanoscope IIIa Controller
- Pelco BioWave Microwave
   Processor
- Image Processing Work Stations
- Wide Field Fluorescence
   Microscope
- Leica Upright Fluorescence Microscope with Fast Confocal Scanner and CCD camera
- Leica Inverted Fluorescence microscope with Confocal Scanner
- Tunable Ultra-short pulse Infrared Laser for Two-Photon Excitation Microscopy

### ABI ViiA 7 Real-Time PCR Luminex IS100 XYP

Flow Cytometer

#### **Poster Printing Service**

#### **Preclinical Services**

- Available for contract or collaborative animal research project opportunities
- Flexivent and Telemetry
- Echocardiology
- Level 2 biocontainment suite
- Colony management services
- Surgical services

#### **Technology Development**

- Engineering consultation services
- 3D design
- Machining tools for rapid prototyping
- Data collection software
- Software to generate printed circuit boards
- Data collection software

For more information on our research capabilities and services, please contact: Claire Smits, Laboratory Operations Leader t: 604.806.8852 e: claire.smits@hli.ubc.ca



The following operational highlights occurred during 2013.

- The implementation of our third **Canada Foundation for Innovation (CFI) Award** is well underway. Drawings have been developed for the laboratory renovation currently in progress, new equipment has been sourced and orders have been placed.
- **IT Services:** The IT Services Team worked hard this year to replace all aging general use desktop computers, upgrade the network, storage and server systems, implement email support for mobile devices, provide file sharing capabilities through a web collaboration portal and created numerous custom databases for HLI PI.
- The **CV Registry** relocated all materials to safe storage containers and shelving. This is a mammoth task to undertake. They also launched the first draft of the new electronic inventory management system to encompass general and specimen inventory.
- The **Molecular Phenotyping Core** was able to upgrade the Flow Cytometry facility with a new analyzer and a cell sorter with bio-containment thanks to the CFI funding.
- **Histology** was able to upgrade the facility with a new Cryostat, Tissue Processor and Autostainer thanks to the CFI funding.
- **Cellular Imaging & Biophysics group** was able to upgrade the facility with a new EM Tissue Processor thanks to the CFI funding.
- **GEM (Preclinical Services)** received an exemplary site visit report from the UBC Animal Care Committee and continued to excel in developing new models of heart and lung disease.
- **Digital Slide Scanning Service** continues to attract more users and support international research programs.
- **HLI Operations Team** updated Exit Protocols for laboratory decommissioning, implemented a Centre Code of Conduct and organized Training Sessions on Efficient Inventory Control for Freezers.
- HLI Safety kept us all safe with chemical inventory cataloguing and reduction programs.



Code Red/Green Drill May 2013

### **Facility Users**

Thirty Scientists at the HLI and 705 external users (table below) access the Centre's Technology Cores each year to contribute to external national and international research projects. 96% of users are external to the HLI, 74% of users are external to UBC and 54% of users are external to British Columbia.

Geographic Distribution of Users	Total number of users (in 2013)
From host institution (UBC)	181
From local institutions/organizations	140
From Provinces (excluding users at Host Institution )	
From Alberta	15
From British Columbia	5
From Manitoba	14
From New Brunswick	0
From Newfoundland & Labrador	1
From Northwest Territories, Nunavut and Yukon	0
From Nova Scotia	5
From Ontario	43
From Prince Edward Island	0
From Quebec	48
From Saskatchewan	11
From outside Canada (USA and international)	242
TOTAL	705

Tuble 1. Cooproprie distribution and number of facility discipline fact year (suit bece 2010)	Table 1.	Geographic distribution	and number of facilit	y users in the past	year (Jan – Dec 2013
---	----------	-------------------------	-----------------------	---------------------	----------------------

**NOTE:** The numbers above reflect <u>ACTUAL EXTERNAL USERS</u> of the facility/services and <u>DO NOT</u> reflect facility usage by HLI scientists.

## **Communicating Our Results**

## New Investigator Awards are funding groundbreaking medical research by two of St. Paul's Hospital's brightest young doctors

*St. Paul's Hospital Promise Magazine: Spring/Summer 2013* - At the UBC James Hogg Research Centre at St. Paul's, which specializes in medical research related to the heart and lungs, Drs. Tillie-Louise Hackett and Jordan Guenette are exploring different aspects of a common interest – the study of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD). Close to three million Canadians currently live with COPD, a disease that is characterized by deadly "lung attacks" and is the fourth-leading cause of death worldwide. *(*Link - Meeting of the minds: New Investigator Awards are funding groundbreaking medical research)

Watch a video of Dr. Jordan Guenette. Watch a video of Dr. Tillie-Louise Hackett.

### PHCRI research study gives hope to those with chronic non-healing wounds

Released August 19, 2013, VANCOUVER, BC — New research tackles a major problem plaguing long-term care facilities and hospitals. The study, published in the Nature Publication Group journal Cell Death and Differentiation, gives hope to those with chronic non-healing wounds, a problem affecting as many as 20-25 percent of patients in long-term care facilities. As we age, the skin becomes thinner and weaker reducing its capacity to heal. The elderly and people affected with immobility, diabetes and/or obesity are highly susceptible to developing skin wounds that do not close and heal properly. The article entitled "Granzyme B degrades extracellular matrix and contributes to delayed wound closure in apolipoprotein E knockout mice" shows that inhibition of Granzyme B improves the healing of chronic, non-healing wounds. This is the first study to show that inhibiting this protein-degrading enzyme, that builds up with age and chronic inflammation, can restore normal wound healing. The study was funded in part through a Canadian Institutes for Health Research Industry Partnership grant. The study was led by Dr. Paul Hiebert, a former PhD candidate in the laboratory of Dr. David Granville, Principal Investigator at the Centre for Heart and Lung Innovation at St. Paul's Hospital, Professor in the Department of Pathology and Laboratory Medicine at the University of British Columbia and Founder and CSO, viDA Therapeutics, Inc.



Source: IHLH

Breathing new life into medicine: Celebrating the extraordinary achievements of Dr. James Hogg



Brian Smith photography, Providence Health Care

St. Paul's Hospital Promise Magazine: Fall/Winter 2013 - When **Dr. James Hogg** was awarded the \$100,000 Canada Gairdner Wightman Award in March, the most prestigious biomedical prize in Canada, no one in the global medical science community was surprised, except perhaps for Hogg himself. "I was flabbergasted, but honoured," says Hogg, a St. Paul's Hospital-based researcher, teacher, lecturer and colleague who has arguably contributed more to modern medicine's knowledge of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) than any other individual in the world. "It's a lifetime award, so I really accept it as recognition of the work that's going on in the respiratory field in Canada. And I hope it draws attention to COPD and the enormous world health problem that it is." (Link - Breathing new life into medicine: Celebrating the extraordinary achievements of Dr. James Hogg)

Watch a video of Dr. James Hogg.

### **Changing Lives Through Research**

Drs. Tillie-Louise Hackett, Jordan Guenette and Stephan van Eeden were profiled in the Fall & Winter 2013 BC Lung Association *Your Health* publication.

**Dr. Guenette's** current research relates to how exercise can improve quality of life in patients living with chronic respiratory conditions.

**Dr. Hackett's** research centres on developing a better understanding of COPD ( chronic obstructive pulmonary disease), one of the leading causes of death worldwide.

**Dr. van Eeden** and his team are studying how air pollutants like cigarette smoke and particulate matter damage lung cells and how to reduce their impact.

## **Next Steps**

The Centre for Heart Lung Innovation (HLI) is grateful to the continued support of our funding partners: Canada Foundation for Innovation, British Columbia Knowledge Development Fund, Providence Health Care, University of British Columbia, Heart and Stroke Foundation of BC and Yukon, BC Lung Association, the St Paul's Hospital Foundation and many vendors and industrial collaborators, for their crucial support of our ongoing programs.

We look forward to a very active year ahead. Within the coming year we will be finalizing the implementation of our third CFI award and hoping for successful results on our third and fourth submissions, establishing new committee structures to guide internal projects, evolving our IT capabilities to support the growing needs of all investigators and as always, increasing our fundraising presence in the community.

We are grateful to the following individuals for their assistance in the creation of this report: Melanie Hanson, Shemim Manji, Yuliya Shapova, Jane Ebreo, Dean English, Leah Lockhart, Chloe Scott, Lindsay Lynch, Hansen Chou, Dr. Keith Walley, Dr. Tillie-Louise Hackett, Dr. Jordan Guenette, Dr. David Granville, Dr. Stephan van Eeden, Dr. Honglin Luo, Dr. Deceheng Yang and Dr. Don Sin.

## **Partnerships**

We wish to thank our current partners:

BC Knowledge Development Fund **BC Lung Association** Canada Foundation for Innovation Canada Research Chairs Canadian Institutes of Health Research Genome British Columbia Genome Canada GlaxoSmithKline Heart and Stroke Foundation of BC and Yukon Merck Frosst Canada Michael Smith Foundation for Health Research National Institutes of Health (USA) National Sanitarium Association Novartis Providence Health Care Research Institute Providence Health Care, St. Paul's Hospital St. Paul's Hospital Foundation University of British Columbia

## Supporting Our Fight Against Heart and Lung Diseases

Heart and lung diseases combined are still the world's number one cause of death and disability. Help us win this fight.

The Centre for Heart Lung Innovation has been extremely successful at attracting infrastructure grants and government research dollars but attracting funds to allow us to retain our expertly trained staff and purchase new equipment remains a challenge. We encourage corporate, private and individual donors to look into our research and our capabilities with the help of the following organizations.



St. Paul's Foundation

178 – 1081 Burrard Street, Vancouver, BC V6Z 1Y6 Phone (for residents of Metro Vancouver): 604-682-8206 Phone (toll-free number for residents of rest of BC): 1-800-720-2983 sphfoundation@providencehealth.bc.ca / www.helpstpauls.com



a place of mind The UNIVERSITY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

### **University of British Columbia**

Development and Alumni Engagement 500 - 5950 University Blvd Vancouver, BC Canada V6T 1Z3 Tel 604 822 8900 <u>info@startanevolution.ubc.ca</u> https://startanevolution.ubc.ca/category/projects-by-faculty/faculty-of-medicine

## Appendices

# **Appendix A:** Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Grants, Contracts, Clinical Trials and Agreements 2013; to February 28, 2014

AGENCY	AMOUNT	RESEARCHER	TITLE	AWARD TYPE
Heart and Stroke Foundation of British Columbia and Yukon	103,955.00	Bernatchez, Pascal	Pharmacological and translational analysis of the eNOS/Caveolin- 1 interaction	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	15,000.00	Bernatchez, Pascal	Cellular mechanisms underlying vascular dysfunction and aortic aneurysm in Marfan syndrome	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	5,000.00	Bernatchez, Pascal	Increased nitric oxide bioavailability and re- vascularization in aging vasculature: validation of a drug target	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	5,000.00	Bernatchez, Pascal	Research Allowance: The role of angiotensin II receptor Type 1 in aortic aneurysm and vascular dysfunction in marfan syndrome	Grant
National Sanitarium Association	200,000.00	Boyd, John	Cell free RNA in plasma: disease- specific transcriptomes will provide diagnostic molecular signatures to differentiate severe pneumonia from congesetive heart failure	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	200,000.00	Boyd, John	SON RIS: Sepsis Outcomes National Registry to improve survival	Grant

British Columbia Lung Association	40,000.00	Camp, Pat	Equipment Grant: Promoting Physical Activity for British Columbians with Chronic Lung Disease	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	101,771.00	Coxson, Harvey O.	Thoracic Imaging Network of Canada (TIN_CAN)	Grant
Canada Foundation for Innovation	11,999.00	Daley, Denise	CFI Infrastructure Operating Fund	Grant
Allergy, Genes and Environment Network (AllerGen) - Networks of Centres of Excellence (NCE)	60,000.00	Daley, Denise	Genome-wide association results	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	250,000.00	Daley, Denise	Epigenetic mechanisms for the development of asthma	Grant
Genome British Columbia	300,000.00	Daley, Denise	Epigenetic Mechanisms for the Development of Asthma	Agreement
National Sanitarium Association	186,518.00	Dorscheid, Delbert R.	Bio-airway research offering new concepts in health (BRONCH) Partnership.	Grant
ALL Phase Clinical Research	6,975.00	Dorscheid, Delbert R.	A Canadian, 12- month, multicentre, open-label study evaluating the oral corticosteroid sparing effect of Xolair* (omalizumab) therapy in inadequately- controlled moderate to severe allergic asthma patients	Clinical Trial
Canada Foundation for Innovation	3,753.00	Francis, Gordon A.	CFI Infrastructure Operating Fund	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	129,875.00	Francis, Gordon A.	The role of lyososomal cholesterol in the regulation of ABCA1 expression and HDL formation	Grant

Heart and Stroke Foundation of British Columbia and Yukon	102,828.00	Francis, Gordon A.	The role of arterial smooth muscle cells in intimal foam cell formation	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	127,708.00	Francis, Gordon A.	Cellular lipid efflux and HDL formation	Grant
Synageva Biopharma	12,500.00	Francis, Gordon A.	Cholesteryl Ester Storage Disease Case Finding Screening Program	Agreement
AMGEN Canada Inc.	2,000.00	Francis, Gordon A.	A Double-blind, Randomized, Placebo- controlled, Multicenter Study Assessing the Impact of Additional LDL- Cholesterol Reduction on Major Cardiovascular Events When AMG 145 is Used in Combination With Statin Therapy in Patients with Clinicall	Clinical Trial
Merck Frosst Canada Ltd.	12,823.00	Frohlich, Jiri	A 1-Year, Worldwide, multicenter, Double- Blind, Randomized, Parallel, Placebo- Controlled Study to Assess the Efficacy and Tolerability of Anacetrapib When Added to Ongoing Statin Therapy With or Without Other Lipid Modifying Medication(s)	Clinical Trial

AMGEN Canada Inc.	41,023.18	Frohlich, Jiri	A double-blind, Randomized, Placebo- controlled, Multicenter Study to Evaluate Safety, Tolerability and Efficacy of AMG 145 on LDL-C in Subjects with Heterozygous Familial Hypercholesterolemia	Clinical Trial
AMGEN Canada Inc.	9,035.50	Frohlich, Jiri	A Multicentre, Controlled, Open-label Extension (OLE) Study to Assess the Long- term Safety and Efficacy of AMG 145.	Clinical Trial
Providence/St. Paul's Hospital Foundation	53,000.00	Frohlich, Jiri	A Cohort Clinical Study of Patients with Elevated Lipoprotein(a) in Healthy Heart Program	Grant
Pfizer Canada Inc.	100,000.00	Frohlich, Jiri	Creation and Implementation of a Registry for Familial Hypercholesterolemia.	Clinical Trial
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR) Industry Partnership	623,930.00	Granville, David J.	Research and Development of Granzyme B Inhibitors	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	103,475.00	Granville, David J.	Granzyme B in abdominal aortic aneurysm	Grant
Canadian Diabetes Association	74,024.00	Granville, David J.	Granzyme B in non- healing diabetic skin ulcer pathogenesis	Grant
Mathematics of Information Technology and Complex Systems (MITACS) - Networks of Centres of Excellence (NCE)	7,500.00	Granville, David J.	Granzyme B in Tissue Remodeling	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR) Pilot Grant	11,250.00	Granville, David J.	The effect of Granzyme B on photoaging	Grant

Western Economic			The effect of	
Diversification	15,000.00	Granville, David J.	Granzyme B on	Grant
Canada			photoaging	
			Does pulmonary	
			rehabilitation reduce	
UBC Department of	5 000 00	Current to Jondon A	neuromechanical	Creat
Physical Therapy	5,000.00	Guenette, Jordan A.	uncoupling of the	Grant
			respiratory system in	
			COPD	
Notural Calonada and			Respiratory and	
Natural Sciences and			locomotor muscle	
Engineering Research	30,000.00	Guenette, Jordan A.	blood flow regulation	Grant
			during physiological	
(NSERC)			stress	
			Mechanisms of	
British Columbia Lung	22.222.22		external dyspnea in	
Association	30,000.00	Guenette, Jordan A.	fibrotic interstitial	Grant
			lung disease	
Duitich Columbia			Sex, gender and	
British Columbia			cardio-respiratory	
Knowledge	125,000.00	Guenette, Jordan A.	limitations during	Grant
			exercise in health and	
(BCKDF)			chronic lung disease	
			Sex, gender and	
Canada Foundation			cardio-respiratory	
	125,000.00	Guenette, Jordan A.	limitations during	Grant
TOP INNOVATION			exercise in health and	
			chronic lung disease	
			Sex, gender and	
Providence Research			cardio-respiratory	
Institute	54,801.00	Guenette, Jordan A.	limitations during	Grant
mstitute			exercise in health and	
			chronic lung disease	
			Resetting epithelial	
Canadian Institutes of			differentiation as a	
Health Research	136,143.00	Hackett, Tillie- Louise	novel therapeutic	Grant
(CIHR)			approach to treating	
			asthma	
National Institutes of			Epithelial Mitotic	
Health	3,662.01	Hackett, Tillie-Louise	Dyssynchrony in	Agreement
			Fibrotic Disease	
			Molecular	
British Columbia Lung	30,000,00	Hackett Tillie-Louise	determinants of small	Grant
Association	50,000.00		airway obstruction in	
			COPD	

Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	41,689.00	Hackett, Tillie-Louise	Molecular determinants of small airway obstruction in COPD	Grant
Allergy, Genes and Environment Network (AllerGen) - Networks of Centres of Excellence (NCE)	10,000.00	Hackett, Tillie-Louise	Innate immune responses of the airway epithelium	Grant
UBC Faculty of Medicine	4,995.16	Hackett, Tillie-Louise	Molecular determinants of small airway obstruction in COPD.	Grant
Parker B. Francis Foundation	169,000.00	Hackett, Tillie-Louise	The role of Angiotensin II- mediated TGFβ1 signaling in COPD pathogenesis	Grant
International Klosterfrau Foundation for Asthma Research	45,000.00	Hackett, Tillie-Louise	The role of apical junction complex proteins in airway remodeling in asthma	Grant
National Institutes of Health (NIH)	854,450.00	Hackett, Tillie-Louise	Molecular determinants of COPD	Grant
Merck Frosst Canada Ltd.	100,000.00	Hogg, James C.	Role of the Host Response to the Lung Microbiome in the Pathogenesis of COPD	Agreement
British Columbia Lung Association	21,000.00 Hogg, James C. bacteria and hos chronic		The interaction between the lung bacterial microbiome and host response in chronic obstructive pulmonary disease	Grant
Canadian Lung Association	45,000.00	Hogg, James C.	Phenotyping small airway disease in patients with COPD	Grant
Boehringer Ingelheim (Germany)	30,552.00	Hogg, James C.	Expression of Components of the Cholinergic and ß- Symphathomimetic System in Lung Tissue Samples of COPD Patients and Healthy Smokers	Contract

Grifols	93,024.00	Hogg, James C.	The Mechanism of Lung Tissue Destruction in Alpha One Anti trypsin	Contract
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	6,666.67	Knight, Darryl	Deficiency Salary: The role of the airway epithelium inflammasome in	Grant
Michael Smith Foundation for Health Research	1,167.00	Knight, Darryl	asthma pathogenesis The role of the airway epithelium NLRP3 inflammasome in asthma pathogenesis	Grant
British Columbia Lung Association	21,700.00	Knight, Darryl	The airway epithelium NLRP3 inflammasome: Central player in air pollution mediated innate and adaptive immune responses	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	108,058.00	Luo, Honglin	Cleavage of serum response factor in viral cardiomyopathy	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	75,000.00	Luo, Honglin	Interaction between REGgamma and p53 in heart infectious disease	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	123,691.00	Man, S.F. Paul	Emphysema and inflamm-aging in HIV- seropositive patients	Grant
Michael Smith Foundation for Health Research	27,417.00	Man, S.F. Paul	Investigation of aging- related pathways associated with an increased risk of emphysema in HIV- infected patients	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	60,249.00	McManus, Bruce M.	Mechanisms of allograft vasculopathy	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	133,369.00	McManus, Bruce M.	Dysregulated STAT-3 activation underlies lung fibroblast heterogeneity: Implications for idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis.	Grant

Genome British	188.544.00 McManus. Bruce M.		Clinical implementation of	Agreement
Columbia	100,344.00		assays in heart and kidney transplantation	Agreement
PROOF Centre of	179 250 00	McManus Bruce M	Clinical implementation of	Agreement
Excellence	175,230.00		assays in heart and kidney transplantation	Agreement
Michael Smith Foundation for Health Research	2,000.00	McManus, Bruce M.	BC PRoteomics Network - Training program	Agreement
Michael Smith Foundation for Health Research	24,208.00	Pare, Peter D.	Unraveling the molecular mechanisms for variation in lung function	Grant
PPD Development, LP	5,864.77	Ryerson, Chris	A Phase 2, Randomized Dose- ranging Study to Evaluate the Efficacy of Tralokinumab in Adults with Idiopathic Pulmonary Fibrosis	Clinical Trial
Allergy, Genes and Environment Network (AllerGen) - Networks of Centres of Excellence (NCE)	6,600.00	Sandford, Andrew J.	Alternate Theme Leader/ Theme Coordination Support: Theme I - Genes and early life determinates	Grant
Janssen Inc.	3,750.00	Schellenberg, Robert	A Phase 2a, Randomized, Double- Blind, Placebo- Controlled, Multicenter, Parallel Group Study of JNJ- 38518168 in Symptomatic Adult Subjects with Uncontrolled, Persistent Asthma	Clinical Trial

Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	132,211.00	Seow, Chun	Mechanical properties of human airway smooth muscle in vitro and in vivo: Normal structure and function and abnormalities in asthma	Grant
Natural Sciences and Engineering Research Council of Canada (NSERC)	47,000.00	Seow, Chun	Visualization and assessment of physical and chemical interactions among smooth muscle proteins	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	119,118.00	Seow, Chun	Plasticity in airway smooth muscle	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	138,014.00	Sin, Don	Why are women at increased risk of COPD?	Grant
Boehringer Ingelheim (Canada) Ltd.	20,537.83	Sin, Don	A randomised, double-blind, parallel group study to assess the efficacy and safety of 52 weeks of once daily treatment of orally inhaled tiotropium + olodaterol fixed dose combination (2.5 μg / 5 and 5 μg / 5 μg) (delivered by the Respimat <sup>®</sup>	Clinical Trial
Genome British Columbia	25,937.00	Sin, Don	Development of novel biomarker blood tests for COPD	Agreement
PROOF Centre of Excellence	174,500.00	Sin, Don	Development of novel biomarker blood tests for COPD	Agreement

Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	2,500.00	Sin, Don	Research Allowance: Characterizing the evolution of symptoms, lung function, bacteriology and inflammation throughout the course of treatment of acute pulmonary exacerbations in cystic fibrosis	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	37,500.00	Sin, Don	Stipends: Characterizing the evolution of symptoms, lung function, bacteriology and inflammation throughout the course of treatment of acute pulmonary exacerbations in cystic fibrosis	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	122,715.00	Sin, Don	Inhaled corticosteroids as risk factors for severe viral infections in asthmatics: lessons from the H1N1 epidemic	Grant
British Columbia Lung Association	22,500.00	Sin, Don	Identification of novel plasma biomarkers to predict treatment response in acute exacerbations of cystic fibrosis	Grant
St. Paul's Hospital Foundation	152,066.00	Sin, Don	Clinical implementation and outcomes evaluation of blood-based biomarkers for COPD management	Grant
Providence Research Institute	15,000.00	Sin, Don	Clinical implementation and outcomes evaluation of blood-based biomarkers for COPD management	Grant

Genome British Columbia	1,800,000	Sin, Don	Clinical implementation and outcomes evaluation of blood-based biomarkers for COPD management	Agreement
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	900,000.00	Sin, Don	Clinical implementation and outcomes evaluation of blood-based biomarkers for COPD management	Grant
Allergy, Genes and Environment Network (AllerGen) - Networks of Centres of Excellence (NCE)	14,102.70	Tebbutt, Scott	Genetics of the early and late responses to AllerGen challenge	Grant
Allergy, Genes and Environment Network (AllerGen) - Networks of Centres of Excellence (NCE)	33,750.00	Tebbutt, Scott	Allergic asthma functional and pharmaco-genomics for early and late phase response biomarkers	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	5,000.00	Tebbutt, Scott	Molecular determinants of early and dual asthmatic responses	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	6,000.00	Tebbutt, Scott	Statistical methods for the integration of high-dimensional omics data sets	Grant
National Institutes of Health	5,726.75	Van Eeden, Stephanus F.	Diesel Exhaust, Vascular Response, and Systemic Inflammation	Agreement
British Columbia Lung Association	30,000.00	Van Eeden <i>,</i> Stephanus F.	The impact of HMG- CoA reductase inhibitors on lung inflammation in COPD	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	30,000.00	Van Eeden, Stephanus F.	Novel mechanisms to control lung inflammation by clearnce of air pollutants via lung cells	Grant

TOTAL	\$8,408,159.57		myocaruitis	
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	100,442.00	Yang, Decheng	IRES-dependent translation of heat shock proteins in the pathogenesis of coxsackievirus myocarditic	Grant
Heart and Stroke Foundation of Canada	10,000.00	Yang, Decheng	MicroRNA-regulated cardiac tropism and pathogenesis in coxsackievirus infection	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	130,560.00	Yang, Decheng	MicroRNA-mediated gene regulation as a determinant of tissue tropism and pathogenesis in coxsackievirus infection	Grant
Canadian Cystic Fibrosis Foundation	14,800.00	Wilcox, Pearce G.	Identification of novel plasma biomarkers in exacerbations of cystic fibrosis	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR) Strategic Training Grant	325,000.00	Walley, Keith	IMPACT	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	107,767.00	Walley, Keith	Toll-like receptor anti- inflammatory response in cardiac inflammatory states	Grant
Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)	5,000.00	Van Eeden, Stephanus F.	Novel mechanisms to control lung inflammation by clearnce of air pollutants via lung cells	Grant

### Appendix B: Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Publications for 2013

- Aaron SD, Vandemheen KL, Maltais F, Field SK, Sin DD, Bourbeau J, Marciniuk DD, Fitzgerald JM, Nair P, Mallick R. TNFalpha antagonists for acute exacerbations of COPD: a randomised double-blind controlled trial. *Thorax* 2013;68:142-148.
- Agusti A, Edwards LD, Celli B, Macnee W, Calverley PM, Mullerova H, Lomas DA, Wouters E, Bakke P, Rennard S, Crim C, Miller BE, Coxson HO, Yates JC, Tal-Singer R, Vestbo J, for the Evaluation of CLtIPSEi. Characteristics, stability and outcomes of the gold 2011 copd groups in the eclipse cohort. *The European respiratory journal* 2013.
- 3. Ali S, Hirschfeld AF, Mayer ML, Fortuno ES, 3rd, Corbett N, Kaplan M, Wang S, Schneiderman J, Fjell CD, Yan J, Akhabir L, Aminuddin F, Marr N, Lacaze-Masmonteil T, Hegele RG, Becker A, Chan-Yeung M, Hancock RE, Kollmann TR, Daley D, Sandford AJ, Lavoie PM, Turvey SE. Functional Genetic Variation in NFKBIA and Susceptibility to Childhood Asthma, Bronchiolitis, and Bronchopulmonary Dysplasia. *Journal of immunology* 2013;190:3949-3958.
- 4. Aminuddin F, Hackett TL, Stefanowicz D, Saferali A, Pare PD, Gulsvik A, Bakke P, Cho MH, Litonjua A, Lomas DA, Anderson WH, Beaty TH, Silverman EK, Sandford AJ. Nitric oxide synthase polymorphisms, gene expression and lung function in chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. *BMC pulmonary medicine* 2013;13:64.
- 5. Anantasit N, Boyd JH, Russell JA, Fjell CD, Lichtenstein SV, Walley KR. Prolonged QTc affects short-term and long-term outcomes in patients with normal left ventricular function undergoing cardiac surgery. *The Journal of thoracic and cardiovascular surgery* 2013.
- 6. Anderson TJ, Gregoire J, Hegele RA, Couture P, Mancini GB, McPherson R, Francis GA, Poirier P, Lau DC, Grover S, Genest J, Jr., Carpentier AC, Dufour R, Gupta M, Ward R, Leiter LA, Lonn E, Ng DS, Pearson GJ, Yates GM, Stone JA, Ur E. 2012 update of the Canadian Cardiovascular Society guidelines for the diagnosis and treatment of dyslipidemia for the prevention of cardiovascular disease in the adult. *Can J Cardiol* 2013;29:151-167.
- Assayag D, Lubin M, Lee JS, King TE, Collard HR, Ryerson CJ. Predictors of mortality in rheumatoid arthritis-related interstitial lung disease. *Respirology* 2013.

- 8. Azad MB, Becker AB, Guttman DS, Sears MR, Scott JA, Kozyrskyj AL, Canadian Healthy Infant Longitudinal Development Study I. Gut microbiota diversity and atopic disease: does breastfeeding play a role? *The Journal of allergy and clinical immunology* 2013;131:247-248.
- **9.** Bai N, van Eeden SF. Systemic and vascular effects of circulating diesel exhaust particulate matter. *Inhalation toxicology* 2013;25:725-734.
- Berube JC, Lamontagne M, Couture C, Nickle D, Timens W, Postma DS, Sin DD, Pare PD, Laviolette M, Bosse Y. Genome-wide genetic ancestry measurements to predict lung function in European populations. *The European respiratory journal* 2013;42:1144-1147.
- Bround MJ, Wambolt R, Luciani DS, Kulpa JE, Rodrigues B, Brownsey RW, Allard MF, Johnson JD. Cardiomyocyte ATP production, metabolic flexibility, and survival require calcium flux through cardiac ryanodine receptors in vivo. *The Journal of biological chemistry* 2013.
- 12. Camp P, Reid WD, Yamabayashi C, Brooks D, Goodridge D, Chung F, Marciniuk DD, Neufeld A, Hoens A. Safe and effective prescription of exercise in acute exacerbations of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: Rationale and methods for an integrated knowledge translation study. *Canadian respiratory journal : journal of the Canadian Thoracic Society* 2013;20:281-284.
- 13. Camp PG, Norton SP, Goldman RD, Shajari S, Anne Smith M, Heathcote S, Carleton B. Emergency department visits for children with acute asthma: discharge instructions, parental plans, and follow-through of care-a prospective study. *Cjem* 2013;15:1-10.
- 14. Camp PG, Ramirez-Venegas A, Sansores RH, Alva LF, McDougall JE, Sin DD, Pare PD, Muller NL, Silva CI, Rojas CE, Coxson HO. COPD phenotypes in biomass smoke- versus tobacco smoke-exposed Mexican females. *The European respiratory journal* 2013.
- **15.** Camp PG, Zhang T, Smith MA, Carleton BC. The use of long-acting beta2-agonists as monotherapy in children and adults. *J Popul Ther Clin Pharmacol* 2013;20:e1-e12.
- 16. Camp PG CC. The potential role of accelerometry and remote monitoring in the care of individuals with chronic lung disease. *Canadian Physiotherapy Association Interdivisional Review* 2013;26.

- Chang AC, Patenaude A, Lu K, Fuller M, Ly M, Kyle A, Golbidi S, Wang Y, Walley K, Minchinton A, Laher I, Karsan A. Notch-dependent regulation of the ischemic vasodilatory response--brief report. *Arteriosclerosis, thrombosis, and vascular biology* 2013;33:510-512.
- 18. Chen W, Fitzgerald JM, Rousseau R, Lynd LD, Tan WC, Sadatsafavi M. Complementary and alternative asthma treatments and their association with asthma control: a populationbased study. *BMJ open* 2013;3:e003360.
- 19. Chin RC, Guenette JA, Cheng S, Raghavan N, Amornputtisathaporn N, Cortes-Telles A, Webb KA, O'Donnell DE. Does the respiratory system limit exercise in mild chronic obstructive pulmonary disease? *American journal of respiratory and critical care medicine* 2013;187:1315-1323.
- 20. Cho P, Gelinas L, Corbett NP, Tebbutt SJ, Turvey SE, Fortuno ES, 3rd, Kollmann TR. Association of common single-nucleotide polymorphisms in innate immune genes with differences in TLR-induced cytokine production in neonates. *Genes and immunity* 2013;14:199-211.
- **21.** Choi AG, Wong J, Marchant D, Luo H. The ubiquitin-proteasome system in positive-strand RNA virus infection. *Reviews in medical virology* 2013;23:85-96.
- 22. Christenson SA, Brandsma CA, Campbell JD, Knight DA, Pechkovsky DV, Hogg JC, Timens W, Postma DS, Lenburg M, Spira A. miR-638 regulates gene expression networks associated with emphysematous lung destruction. *Genome medicine* 2013;5:114.
- **23.** Ciavaglia CE, Guenette JA, Ora J, Webb KA, Neder JA, O'Donnell DE. Does exercise test modality influence dyspnoea perception in obese patients with COPD? *The European respiratory journal* 2013.
- 24. Cohen Freue GV, Meredith A, Smith D, Bergman A, Sasaki M, Lam KK, Hollander Z, Opushneva N, Takhar M, Lin D, Wilson-McManus J, Balshaw R, Keown PA, Borchers CH, McManus B, Ng RT, McMaster WR, Biomarkers in T, the NCECPoOFCoET. Computational biomarker pipeline from discovery to clinical implementation: plasma proteomic biomarkers for cardiac transplantation. *PLoS computational biology* 2013;9:e1002963.
- **25.** Coxson HO. Sources of Variation in Quantitative Computed Tomography of the Lung. *Journal of thoracic imaging* 2013.

- 26. Cruz-Sanchez TM, Haddrell AE, Hackett TL, Singhera GK, Marchant D, Lekivetz R, Meredith A, Horne D, Knight DA, van Eeden SF, Bai TR, Hegele RG, Dorscheid DR, Agnes GR. Formation of a stable mimic of ambient particulate matter containing viable infectious respiratory syncytial virus and its dry-deposition directly onto cell cultures. *Analytical chemistry* 2013;85:898-906.
- 27. Douglas JJ, Walley KR. Metabolic changes in cardiomyocytes during sepsis. *Critical care* 2013;17:186.
- **28.** Dunne JV, Keen KJ, Van Eeden SF. Circulating angiopoietin and Tie-2 levels in systemic sclerosis. *Rheumatology international* 2013;33:475-484.
- 29. Faner R, Tal-Singer R, Riley JH, Celli B, Vestbo J, Macnee W, Bakke P, Calverley PM, Coxson H, Crim C, Edwards LD, Locantore N, Lomas DA, Miller BE, Rennard SI, Wouters EF, Yates JC, Silverman EK, Agusti A, on behalf of the ESI. Lessons from ECLIPSE: a review of COPD biomarkers. *Thorax* 2013.
- 30. Ferguson ND, Cook DJ, Guyatt GH, Mehta S, Hand L, Austin P, Zhou Q, Matte A, Walter SD, Lamontagne F, Granton JT, Arabi YM, Arroliga AC, Stewart TE, Slutsky AS, Meade MO, Investigators OT, Canadian Critical Care Trials G. High-frequency oscillation in early acute respiratory distress syndrome. *The New England journal of medicine* 2013;368:795-805.
- **31.** Fjell CD, Thair S, Hsu JL, Walley KR, Russell JA, Boyd J. Cytokines and signaling molecules predict clinical outcomes in sepsis. *PloS one* 2013;8:e79207.
- 32. Flexman AM, Merriman B, Griesdale DE, Mayson K, Choi PT, Ryerson CJ. Infratentorial Neurosurgery Is an Independent Risk Factor for Respiratory Failure and Death in Patients Undergoing Intracranial Tumor Resection. *Journal of neurosurgical anesthesiology* 2013.
- 33. Fu W, O'Connor TD, Jun G, Kang HM, Abecasis G, Leal SM, Gabriel S, Rieder MJ, Altshuler D, Shendure J, Nickerson DA, Bamshad MJ, Project NES, Akey JM. Analysis of 6,515 exomes reveals the recent origin of most human protein-coding variants. *Nature* 2013;493:216-220.
- **34.** Gietema HA, Edwards LD, Coxson HO, Bakke PS, Investigators E. Impact of emphysema and airway wall thickness on quality of life in smoking-related COPD. *Respiratory medicine* 2013.
- **35.** Gordon AC, Russell JA. Vasopressin guidelines in surviving sepsis campaign: 2012. *Critical care medicine* 2013;41:e482-483.

- **36.** Grewal N, Granville D, Reid D, Scott A. The link between dyslipidemia and tendon pathology. *Br J Sports Med* 2013;47:e2.
- 37. Grunau BE, Li J, Yi TW, Stenstrom R, Grafstein E, Wiens MO, Schellenberg RR, Scheuermeyer
   FX. Incidence of Clinically Important Biphasic Reactions in Emergency Department Patients
   With Allergic Reactions or Anaphylaxis. *Annals of emergency medicine* 2013.
- 38. Guenette JA, Chin RC, Cory JM, Webb KA, O'Donnell DE. Inspiratory Capacity during Exercise: Measurement, Analysis, and Interpretation. *Pulmonary medicine* 2013;2013:956081.
- Guenette JA, Webb KA, O'Donnell DE. Effect of fluticasone/salmeterol combination on dyspnea and respiratory mechanics in mild-to-moderate COPD. *Respiratory medicine* 2013;107:708-716.
- 40. Guo DC, Regalado E, Casteel DE, Santos-Cortez RL, Gong L, Kim JJ, Dyack S, Horne SG, Chang G, Jondeau G, Boileau C, Coselli JS, Li Z, Leal SM, Shendure J, Rieder MJ, Bamshad MJ, Nickerson DA, Gen TACRC, National Heart L, Blood Institute Grand Opportunity Exome Sequencing P, Kim C, Milewicz DM. Recurrent gain-of-function mutation in PRKG1 causes thoracic aortic aneurysms and acute aortic dissections. *American journal of human genetics* 2013;93:398-404.
- **41.** Gupta S, Camp PG. An introduction to the Knowledge Translation special issue of the Canadian Respiratory Journal. *Canadian respiratory journal : journal of the Canadian Thoracic Society* 2013;20:262.
- 42. Hackett TL, de Bruin HG, Shaheen F, van den Berge M, van Oosterhout AJ, Postma DS,
  Heijink IH. Caveolin-1 Controls Airway Epithelial Barrier Function: Implications for Asthma.
  Am J Respir Cell Mol Biol 2013.
- **43.** Hakimi Shoki A, Mayer-Hamblett N, Wilcox PG, Sin DD, Quon BS. Systematic Review of Blood Biomarkers in Cystic Fibrosis Pulmonary Exacerbations. *Chest* 2013.
- **44.** Hallstrand TS, Hackett TL, Altemeier WA, Matute-Bello G, Hansbro PM, Knight DA. Airway epithelial regulation of pulmonary immune homeostasis and inflammation. *Clinical immunology* 2013;151:1-15.

- 45. Hansel NN, Ruczinski I, Rafaels N, Sin DD, Daley D, Malinina A, Huang L, Sandford A, Murray T, Kim Y, Vergara C, Heckbert SR, Psaty BM, Li G, Elliott WM, Aminuddin F, Dupuis J, O'Connor GT, Doheny K, Scott AF, Boezen HM, Postma DS, Smolonska J, Zanen P, Mohamed Hoesein FA, de Koning HJ, Crystal RG, Tanaka T, Ferrucci L, Silverman E, Wan E, Vestbo J, Lomas DA, Connett J, Wise RA, Neptune ER, Mathias RA, Pare PD, Beaty TH, Barnes KC. Genome-wide study identifies two loci associated with lung function decline in mild to moderate COPD. *Human genetics* 2013;132:79-90.
- 46. Hawkins A, Creighton S, Ho A, McManus B, Hayden M. Providing predictive testing for Huntington disease via telehealth: results of a pilot study in British Columbia, Canada. *Clinical genetics* 2013;84:60-64.
- **47.** Hemida MG, Ye X, Zhang HM, Hanson PJ, Liu Z, McManus BM, Yang D. MicroRNA-203 enhances coxsackievirus B3 replication through targeting zinc finger protein-148. *Cellular and molecular life sciences : CMLS* 2013;70:277-291.
- **48.** Hendel A, Granville DJ. Granzyme B cleavage of fibronectin disrupts endothelial cell adhesion, migration and capillary tube formation. *Matrix biology : journal of the International Society for Matrix Biology* 2013;32:14-22.
- 49. Hiebert PR, Boivin WA, Zhao H, McManus BM, Granville DJ. Perforin and Granzyme B Have Separate and Distinct Roles during Atherosclerotic Plaque Development in Apolipoprotein E Knockout Mice. *PloS one* 2013;8:e78939.
- 50. Hiebert PR, Wu D, Granville DJ. Granzyme B degrades extracellular matrix and contributes to delayed wound closure in apolipoprotein E knockout mice. *Cell death and differentiation* 2013;20:1404-1414.
- **51.** Hiraiwa K, van Eeden SF. Contribution of Lung Macrophages to the Inflammatory Responses Induced by Exposure to Air Pollutants. *Mediators of inflammation* 2013;2013:619523.
- 52. Hirota JA, Hiebert PR, Gold M, Wu D, Graydon C, Smith JA, Ask K, McNagny K, Granville DJ, Knight DA. Granzyme B Deficiency Exacerbates Lung Inflammation in Mice Following Acute Lung Injury. Am J Respir Cell Mol Biol 2013.

- **53.** Hoens AM, Reid WD, Camp PG. Knowledge brokering: An innovative model for supporting evidence-informed practice in respiratory care. *Canadian respiratory journal : journal of the Canadian Thoracic Society* 2013;20:271-274.
- **54.** Hogg JC, McDonough JE, Suzuki M. Small Airway Obstruction in COPD: New Insights Based on Micro-CT Imaging and MRI Imaging. *Chest* 2013;143:1436-1443.
- 55. Hollander Z, Chen V, Sidhu K, Lin D, Ng RT, Balshaw R, Cohen-Freue GV, Ignaszewski A, Imai C, Kaan A, Tebbutt SJ, Wilson-McManus JE, McMaster RW, Keown PA, McManus BM, Excellence NCPCo. Predicting acute cardiac rejection from donor heart and pre-transplant recipient blood gene expression. *The Journal of heart and lung transplantation : the official publication of the International Society for Heart Transplantation* 2013;32:259-265.
- 56. Hui P, Mattman A, Wilcox PG, Wright JL, Sin DD. Immunoglobulin G4-related lung disease: A disease with many different faces. *Canadian respiratory journal : journal of the Canadian Thoracic Society* 2013;20:335-338.
- 57. Ishii T, Abboud RT, Wallace AM, English JC, Coxson HO, Finley RJ, Shumansky K, Pare PD, Sandford AJ. Alveolar macrophage proteinase/antiproteinase expression and lung function/emphysema. *The European respiratory journal* 2013.
- 58. Jensen KJ, Garmaroudi FS, Zhang J, Lin J, Boroomand S, Zhang M, Luo Z, Yang D, Luo H, McManus BM, Janes KA. An ERK-p38 subnetwork coordinates host cell apoptosis and necrosis during coxsackievirus B3 infection. *Cell host & microbe* 2013;13:67-76.
- 59. Jithoo A, Enright PL, Burney P, Buist AS, Bateman ED, Tan WC, Studnicka M, Mejza F, Gillespie S, Vollmer WM, Group BCR. Case-finding options for COPD: results from the Burden of Obstructive Lung Disease study. *The European respiratory journal* 2013;41:548-555.
- 60. Johnsen JM, Auer PL, Morrison AC, Jiao S, Wei P, Haessler J, Fox K, McGee SR, Smith JD, Carlson CS, Smith N, Boerwinkle E, Kooperberg C, Nickerson DA, Rich SS, Green D, Peters U, Cushman M, Reiner AP, Project NES. Common and rare von Willebrand factor (VWF) coding variants, VWF levels, and factor VIII levels in African Americans: the NHLBI Exome Sequencing Project. *Blood* 2013;122:590-597.

- 61. Kim WD, Chi HS, Choe KH, Oh YM, Lee SD, Kim KR, Yoo KH, Ngan DA, Elliott WM, Granville DJ, Sin DD, Hogg JC. A possible role for CD8(+) and non-CD8(+) cell granzyme B in early small airway wall remodelling in centrilobular emphysema. *Respirology* 2013;18:688-696.
- **62.** Kirby M, Coxson HO. Computed tomography biomarkers of pulmonary emphysema. *Copd* 2013;10:547-550.
- **63.** Kirby M, Coxson HO, Parraga G. Pulmonary Functional Magnetic Resonance Imaging for Paediatric Lung Disease. *Paediatric respiratory reviews* 2013.
- 64. Kirby M, Owrangi A, Svenningsen S, Wheatley A, Coxson HO, Paterson NA, McCormack DG, Parraga G. On the role of abnormal DLCO in ex-smokers without airflow limitation: symptoms, exercise capacity and hyperpolarised helium-3 MRI. *Thorax* 2013.
- 65. Kusters DM, Hutten BA, McCrindle BW, Cassiman D, Francis GA, Gagne C, Gaudet D, Morrison KM, Langslet G, Kastelein JJ, Wiegman A. Design and baseline data of a pediatric study with rosuvastatin in familial hypercholesterolemia. *Journal of clinical lipidology* 2013;7:408-413.
- 66. Kyskan R, Chapman K, Mattman A, Sin D. Antiglycine receptor antibody and encephalomyelitis with rigidity and myoclonus (PERM) related to small cell lung cancer. BMJ case reports 2013;2013.
- 67. Lamontagne M, Couture C, Postma DS, Timens W, Sin DD, Pare PD, Hogg JC, Nickle D, Laviolette M, Bosse Y. Refining Susceptibility Loci of Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease with Lung eqtls. *PloS one* 2013;8:e70220.
- 68. Lamprecht B, Vanfleteren LE, Studnicka M, Allison M, McBurnie MA, Vollmer WM, Tan WC, Nielsen R, Nastalek P, Gnatiuc L, Kaiser B, Janson C, Wouters EF, Burney P, Buist AS, group Bcr. Sex-related differences in respiratory symptoms: results from the BOLD Study. *The European respiratory journal* 2013;42:858-860.
- 69. Lan B, Wang L, Zhang J, Pascoe CD, Norris BA, Liu JC, Solomon D, Pare PD, Deng L, Seow CY.
  Rho-kinase mediated cytoskeletal stiffness in skinned smooth muscle. *J Appl Physiol (1985)* 2013;115:1540-1552.

- 70. Lavin KM, Guenette JA, Smoliga JM, Zavorsky GS. Controlled-frequency breath swimming improves swimming performance and running economy. *Scandinavian journal of medicine & science in sports* 2013.
- 71. Lee JS, Kim EJ, Lynch KL, Elicker B, Ryerson CJ, Katsumoto TR, Shum AK, Wolters PJ, Cerri S, Richeldi L, Jones KD, King TE, Jr., Collard HR. Prevalence and clinical significance of circulating autoantibodies in idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis. *Respiratory medicine* 2013;107:249-255.
- **72.** Lee-Gosselin A, Pascoe CD, Couture C, Pare PD, Bosse Y. Does the length-dependency of airway smooth muscle force contribute to airway hyperresponsiveness? *Journal of applied physiology* 2013.
- 73. Leung C, Yu C, Lin MI, Tognon C, Bernatchez P. Expression of myoferlin in human and murine carcinoma tumors: role in membrane repair, cell proliferation, and tumorigenesis. *Am J Pathol* 2013;182:1900-1909.
- **74.** Leung JM, Sin D. Biomarkers in airway diseases. *Canadian respiratory journal : journal of the Canadian Thoracic Society* 2013;20:180-182.
- **75.** Leung JM, Sin DD. COPD in never smokers: prognosis unveiled. *The lancet Respiratory medicine* 2013;1:502-504.
- 76. Levin AM, Mathias RA, Huang L, Roth LA, Daley D, Myers RA, Himes BE, Romieu I, Yang M, Eng C, Park JE, Zoratti K, Gignoux CR, Torgerson DG, Galanter JM, Huntsman S, Nguyen EA, Becker AB, Chan-Yeung M, Kozyrskyj AL, Kwok PY, Gilliland FD, Gauderman WJ, Bleecker ER, Raby BA, Meyers DA, London SJ, Martinez FD, Weiss ST, Burchard EG, Nicolae DL, Ober C, Barnes KC, Williams LK. A meta-analysis of genome-wide association studies for serum total IgE in diverse study populations. *The Journal of allergy and clinical immunology* 2013;131:1176-1184.
- 77. Li L, Zhao D, Wei H, Yao L, Dang Y, Amjad A, Xu J, Liu J, Guo L, Li D, Li Z, Zuo D, Zhang Y, Liu J, Huang S, Jia C, Wang L, Wang Y, Xie Y, Luo J, Zhang B, Luo H, Donehower LA, Moses RE, Xiao J, O'Malley BW, Li X. REGgamma deficiency promotes premature aging via the casein kinase 1 pathway. *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America* 2013;110:11005-11010.

- **78.** Lin D, Cohen Freue G, Hollander Z, John Mancini GB, Sasaki M, Mui A, Wilson-McManus J, Ignaszewski A, Imai C, Meredith A, Balshaw R, Ng RT, Keown PA, Robert McMaster W, Carere R, Webb JG, McManus BM, Biomarkers in Transplantation T, Networks of Centres of Excellence CoEfC, Research-Prevention of Organ Failure Centre of E. Plasma protein biosignatures for detection of cardiac allograft vasculopathy. *The Journal of heart and lung transplantation : the official publication of the International Society for Heart Transplantation* 2013;32:723-733.
- 79. Liu JC, Rottler J, Wang L, Zhang J, Pascoe CD, Lan B, Norris BA, Herrera AM, Pare PD, Seow CY. Myosin filaments in smooth muscle cells do not have a constant length. *J Physiol* 2013;591:5867-5878.
- 80. Luciani DS, White SA, Widenmaier SB, Saran VV, Taghizadeh F, Hu X, Allard MF, Johnson JD.
   Bcl-2 and Bcl-xL suppress glucose signaling in pancreatic beta-cells. *Diabetes* 2013;62:170-182.
- **81.** Lyle N, Boyd J. The Potential for PCR Based Testing to Improve Diagnosis and Treatment of Sepsis. *Current infectious disease reports* 2013.
- 82. Madore AM, Vaillancourt VT, Asai Y, Alizadehfar R, Ben-Shoshan M, Michel DL, Kozyrskyj AL, Becker A, Chan-Yeung M, Clarke AE, Hull P, Daley D, Sandford AJ, Laprise C. HLA-DQB1\*02 and DQB1\*06:03P are associated with peanut allergy. *European journal of human genetics : EJHG* 2013.
- **83.** Man SF, Van Eeden S, Sin DD. Vascular risk in chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: role of inflammation and other mediators. *Can J Cardiol* 2012;28:653-661.
- **84.** Martin A, Lavoie L, Goetghebeur M, Schellenberg R. Economic benefits of subcutaneous rapid push versus intravenous immunoglobulin infusion therapy in adult patients with primary immune deficiency. *Transfus Med* 2013;23:55-60.
- 85. Mehta S, Granton J, Gordon AC, Cook DJ, Lapinsky S, Newton G, Bandayrel K, Little A, Siau C, Ayers D, Singer J, Lee TC, Walley KR, Storms M, Cooper DJ, Holmes CL, Hebert P, Presneill J, Russell JA, for the V, Septic Shock Trial I. Cardiac ischemia in patients with septic shock randomized to vasopressin or norepinephrine. *Critical care* 2013;17:R117.

- 86. Melen E, Granell R, Kogevinas M, Strachan D, Gonzalez JR, Wjst M, Jarvis D, Ege M, Braun-Fahrlander C, Genuneit J, Horak E, Bouzigon E, Demenais F, Kauffmann F, Siroux V, Michel S, von Berg A, Heinzmann A, Kabesch M, Probst-Hensch NM, Curjuric I, Imboden M, Rochat T, Henderson J, Sterne JA, McArdle WL, Hui J, James AL, William Musk A, Palmer LJ, Becker A, Kozyrskyj AL, Chan-Young M, Park JE, Leung A, Daley D, Freidin MB, Deev IA, Ogorodova LM, Puzyrev VP, Celedon JC, Brehm JM, Cloutier MM, Canino G, Acosta-Perez E, Soto-Quiros M, Avila L, Bergstrom A, Magnusson J, Soderhall C, Kull I, Scholtens S, Marike Boezen H, Koppelman GH, Wijga AH, Marenholz I, Esparza-Gordillo J, Lau S, Lee YA, Standl M, Tiesler CM, Flexeder C, Heinrich J, Myers RA, Ober C, Nicolae DL, Farrall M, Kumar A, Moffatt MF, Cookson WO, Lasky-Su J. Genome-wide association study of body mass index in 23 000 individuals with and without asthma. *Clinical and experimental allergy : journal of the British Society for Allergy and Clinical Immunology* 2013;43:463-474.
- **87.** Meredith AJ, McManus BM. Vitamin d in heart failure. *Journal of cardiac failure* 2013;19:692-711.
- 88. Miller J, Edwards LD, Agusti A, Bakke P, Calverley PM, Celli B, Coxson HO, Crim C, Lomas DA, Miller BE, Rennard S, Silverman EK, Tal-Singer R, Vestbo J, Wouters E, Yates JC, Macnee W, Evaluation of CLtIPSEI. Comorbidity, systemic inflammation and outcomes in the ECLIPSE cohort. *Respiratory medicine* 2013.
- 89. Miyata R, Bai N, Vincent R, Sin DD, Van Eeden SF. Statins reduce ambient particulate matter-induced lung inflammation by promoting the clearance of particulate matter, < 10 mum from lung tissues. *Chest* 2013;143:452-460.
- **90.** Miyata R, Hiraiwa K, Cheng JC, Bai N, Vincent R, Francis GA, Sin DD, Van Eeden SF. Statins attenuate the development of atherosclerosis and endothelial dysfunction induced by exposure to urban particulate matter (PM10). *Toxicology and applied pharmacology* 2013;272:1-11.
- 91. Mooney JJ, Elicker BM, Urbania TH, Agarwal MR, Ryerson CJ, Nguyen ML, Woodruff PG, Jones KD, Collard HR, King TE, Koth LL. Radiographic Fibrosis Score Predicts Survival in Hypersensitivity Pneumonitis. *Chest* 2013.

- 92. Norton N, Li D, Rampersaud E, Morales A, Martin ER, Zuchner S, Guo S, Gonzalez M, Hedges DJ, Robertson PD, Krumm N, Nickerson DA, Hershberger RE, National Heart L, Blood Institute GOESP, the Exome Sequencing Project Family Studies Project T. Exome sequencing and genome-wide linkage analysis in 17 families illustrate the complex contribution of TTN truncating variants to dilated cardiomyopathy. *Circulation Cardiovascular genetics* 2013;6:144-153.
- **93.** O'Connor TD, Kiezun A, Bamshad M, Rich SS, Smith JD, Turner E, Project NES, Esp Population Genetics SAWG, Leal SM, Akey JM. Fine-scale patterns of population stratification confound rare variant association tests. *PloS one* 2013;8:e65834.
- 94. Pannu PS, Allahverdian S, Francis GA. Oxysterol generation and liver X receptor-dependent reverse cholesterol transport: Not all roads lead to Rome. *Mol Cell Endocrinol* 2013;368:99-107.
- **95.** Park HY, Churg A, Wright JL, Li Y, Tam S, Man SP, Tashkin D, Wise RA, Connett JE, Sin DD. Club Cell Protein 16 and Disease Progression in Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD). *American journal of respiratory and critical care medicine* 2013.
- 96. Park HY, Man SF, Tashkin D, Wise RA, Connett JE, Anthonisen NA, Sin DD. The Relation of Serum Myeloperoxidase to Disease Progression and Mortality in Patients with Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD). *PloS one* 2013;8:e61315.
- **97.** Pascoe CD, Seow CY, Pare PD, Bosse Y. Decrease of airway smooth muscle contractility induced by simulated breathing maneuvers is not simply proportional to strain. *Journal of applied physiology* 2013;114:335-343.
- **98.** Paylor B, Fernandes J, McManus B, Rossi F. Tissue-resident Sca1+ PDGFRalpha+ mesenchymal progenitors are the cellular source of fibrofatty infiltration in arrhythmogenic cardiomyopathy. *F1000Res* 2013;2.
- 99. Reese C, Dyer S, Perry B, Bonner M, Oates J, Hofbauer A, Sessa W, Bernatchez P, Visconti RP, Zhang J, Hatfield CM, Silver RM, Hoffman S, Tourkina E. Differential regulation of cell functions by CSD peptide subdomains. *Respiratory research* 2013;14:90.
- **100.** Rosenthal EA, Ranchalis J, Crosslin DR, Burt A, Brunzell JD, Motulsky AG, Nickerson DA, Project NGES, Wijsman EM, Jarvik GP. Joint linkage and association analysis with exome

sequence data implicates SLC25A40 in hypertriglyceridemia. *American journal of human genetics* 2013;93:1035-1045.

- 101. Russell JA, Fjell C, Hsu JL, Lee T, Boyd J, Thair S, Singer J, Patterson AJ, Walley KR.
  Vasopressin compared with norepinephrine augments the decline of plasma cytokine levels in septic shock. *American journal of respiratory and critical care medicine* 2013;188:356-364.
- **102.** Russell JA, Vincent JL. The new trials of early goal-directed resuscitation: three-part harmony or disharmony? *Intensive care medicine* 2013.
- **103.** Russell JA, Walley KR. Update in sepsis 2012. *American journal of respiratory and critical care medicine* 2013;187:1303-1307.
- 104. Rutten EP, Calverley PM, Casaburi R, Agusti A, Bakke P, Celli B, Coxson HO, Crim C, Lomas DA, Macnee W, Miller BE, Rennard SI, Scanlon PD, Silverman EK, Tal-Singer R, Vestbo J, Watkins ML, Wouters EF. Changes in Body Composition in Patients with Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease: Do They Influence Patient-Related Outcomes? *Annals of nutrition & metabolism* 2013;63:239-247.
- 105. Ryerson CJ, Cayou C, Topp F, Hilling L, Camp PG, Wilcox PG, Khalil N, Collard HR, Garvey C. Pulmonary rehabilitation improves long-term outcomes in interstitial lung disease: A prospective cohort study. *Respiratory medicine* 2013.
- **106.** Ryerson CJ, Collard HR. Update on the diagnosis and classification of ILD. *Current opinion in pulmonary medicine* 2013;19:453-459.
- **107.** Ryerson CJ, Hartman T, Elicker BM, Ley B, Lee JS, Abbritti M, Jones KD, King TE, Ryu J, Collard HR. Clinical features and outcomes in combined pulmonary fibrosis and emphysema in idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis. *Chest* 2013.
- 108. Ryerson CJ, Vittinghoff E, Ley B, Lee JS, Mooney JJ, Jones KD, Elicker BM, Wolters PJ, Koth LL, King TE, Jr., Collard HR. Predicting survival across chronic interstitial lung disease: The ILD-GAP model. *Chest* 2013.
- **109.** Sayiner A, Hague C, Ajlan A, Leipsic J, Wierenga L, Krowchuk NM, Ceylan N, Sayiner A, Sin DD, Coxson HO. Bronchiolitis in young female smokers. *Respiratory medicine* 2013.

- Scherer A, Gunther OP, Balshaw RF, Hollander Z, Wilson-McManus J, Ng R, McMaster WR, McManus BM, Keown PA. Alteration of human blood cell transcriptome in uremia. *BMC medical genomics* 2013;6:23.
- 111. Scholtens S, Postma DS, Moffatt MF, Panasevich S, Granell R, Henderson AJ, Melen E, Nyberg F, Pershagen G, Jarvis D, Ramasamy A, Wjst M, Svanes C, Bouzigon E, Demenais F, Kauffmann F, Siroux V, von Mutius E, Ege MJ, Braun-Fahrlander C, Genuneit J, group Gs, Brunekreef B, Smit HA, Wijga AH, Kerkhof M, Curjuric I, Imboden M, Thun GA, Probst-Hensch N, Freidin MB, Bragina EI, Deev IA, Puzyrev VP, Daley D, Park J, Becker A, Chan-Yeung M, Kozyrskyj AL, Pare P, Marenholn I, Lau S, Keil T, Lee YA, Kabesch M, Wijmenga C, Franke L, Nolte IM, Vonk J, Kumar A, Farrall M, Cookson WO, Strachan DP, Koppelman GH, Boezen HM. Novel childhood asthma genes interact with in utero and early-life tobacco smoke exposure. *The Journal of allergy and clinical immunology* 2013.
- Schuetz JM, Daley D, Leach S, Conde L, Berry BR, Gallagher RP, Connors JM, Gascoyne RD, Bracci PM, Skibola CF, Spinelli JJ, Brooks-Wilson AR. Non-Hodgkin Lymphoma Risk and Variants in Genes Controlling Lymphocyte Development. *PloS one* 2013;8:e75170.
- **113.** Seow CY. Hill's equation of muscle performance and its hidden insight on molecular mechanisms. *The Journal of general physiology* 2013;142:561-573.
- **114.** Seow CY, van Eeden S. Airway Remodeling in Asthma: Tumor of the Airway. *Respiration; international review of thoracic diseases* 2013.
- 115. Shi J, Wong J, Piesik P, Fung G, Zhang J, Jagdeo J, Li X, Jan E, Luo H. Cleavage of sequestosome 1/p62 by an enteroviral protease results in disrupted selective autophagy and impaired NFKB signaling. *Autophagy* 2013;9.
- 116. Sin DD, Macnee W. Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and cardiovascular diseases: a "vulnerable" relationship. *American journal of respiratory and critical care medicine* 2013;187:2-4.
- **117.** Sin DD, Park HY. Steroids for treatment of COPD exacerbations: less is clearly more. *JAMA : the journal of the American Medical Association* 2013;309:2272-2273.
- **118.** Sin DD, Tammemagi CM, Lam S, Barnett MJ, Duan X, Tam A, Auman H, Feng Z, Goodman GE, Hanash S, Taguchi A. Pro-Surfactant Protein B as a Biomarker for Lung Cancer

Prediction. Journal of clinical oncology : official journal of the American Society of Clinical Oncology 2013.

- **119.** Sin DD, Van Eeden S, Leipsic J, Man SF. Reply: beneficial effects of angiotensin receptor blockade in chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. *American journal of respiratory and critical care medicine* 2013;187:328.
- 120. Sin DD, van Eeden S, Man SF. Reply to letter from Mirrakhimov and Mirrakhimov. *Can J Cardiol* 2013;29:639 e611.
- 121. Singh A, Yamamoto M, Kam SH, Ruan J, Gauvreau GM, O'Byrne PM, FitzGerald JM, Schellenberg R, Boulet LP, Wojewodka G, Kanagaratham C, De Sanctis JB, Radzioch D, Tebbutt SJ. Gene-metabolite expression in blood can discriminate allergen-induced isolated early from dual asthmatic responses. *PloS one* 2013;8:e67907.
- 122. Sinuff T, Muscedere J, Cook DJ, Dodek PM, Anderson W, Keenan SP, Wood G, Tan R, Haupt MT, Miletin M, Bouali R, Jiang X, Day AG, Overvelde J, Heyland DK, Canadian Critical Care Trials G. Implementation of clinical practice guidelines for ventilator-associated pneumonia: a multicenter prospective study. *Critical care medicine* 2013;41:15-23.
- 123. Steiling K, van den Berge M, Hijazi K, Florido R, Campbell J, Liu G, Xiao J, Zhang X, Duclos G, Drizik E, Si H, Perdomo C, Dumont C, Coxson HO, Alekseyev YO, Sin D, Pare P, Hogg JC, McWilliams A, Hiemstra PS, Sterk PJ, Timens W, Chang JT, Sebastiani P, O'Connor GT, Bild AH, Postma DS, Lam S, Spira A, Lenburg ME. A Dynamic Bronchial Airway Gene Expression Signature of COPD and Lung Function Impairment. *American journal of respiratory and critical care medicine* 2013.
- 124. Steiling K, van den Berge M, Hijazi K, Florido R, Campbell J, Liu G, Xiao J, Zhang X, Duclos G, Drizik E, Si H, Perdomo C, Dumont C, Coxson HO, Alekseyev YO, Sin D, Pare P, Hogg JC, McWilliams A, Hiemstra PS, Sterk PJ, Timens W, Chang JT, Sebastiani P, O'Connor GT, Bild AH, Postma DS, Lam S, Spira A, Lenburg ME. A dynamic bronchial airway gene expression signature of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and lung function impairment. *American journal of respiratory and critical care medicine* 2013;187:933-942.
- **125.** Stephens SH, Hartz SM, Hoft NR, Saccone NL, Corley RC, Hewitt JK, Hopfer CJ, Breslau N, Coon H, Chen X, Ducci F, Dueker N, Franceschini N, Frank J, Han Y, Hansel NN, Jiang C,

Korhonen T, Lind PA, Liu J, Lyytikainen LP, Michel M, Shaffer JR, Short SE, Sun J, Teumer A, Thompson JR, Vogelzangs N, Vink JM, Wenzlaff A, Wheeler W, Yang BZ, Aggen SH, Balmforth AJ, Baumeister SE, Beaty TH, Benjamin DJ, Bergen AW, Broms U, Cesarini D, Chatterjee N, Chen J, Cheng YC, Cichon S, Couper D, Cucca F, Dick D, Foroud T, Furberg H, Giegling I, Gillespie NA, Gu F, Hall AS, Hallfors J, Han S, Hartmann AM, Heikkila K, Hickie IB, Hottenga JJ, Jousilahti P, Kaakinen M, Kahonen M, Koellinger PD, Kittner S, Konte B, Landi MT, Laatikainen T, Leppert M, Levy SM, Mathias RA, McNeil DW, Medland SE, Montgomery GW, Murray T, Nauck M, North KE, Pare PD, Pergadia M, Ruczinski I, Salomaa V, Viikari J, Willemsen G, Barnes KC, Boerwinkle E, Boomsma DI, Caporaso N, Edenberg HJ, Francks C, Gelernter J, Grabe HJ, Hops H, Jarvelin MR, Johannesson M, Kendler KS, Lehtimaki T, Magnusson PK, Marazita ML, Marchini J, Mitchell BD, Nothen MM, Penninx BW, Raitakari O, Rietschel M, Rujescu D, Samani NJ, Schwartz AG, Shete S, Spitz M, Swan GE, Volzke H, Veijola J, Wei Q, Amos C, Cannon DS, Grucza R, Hatsukami D, Heath A, Johnson EO, Kaprio J, Madden P, Martin NG, Stevens VL, Weiss RB, Kraft P, Bierut LJ, Ehringer MA. Distinct Loci in the CHRNA5/CHRNA3/CHRNB4 Gene Cluster Are Associated With Onset of Regular Smoking. Genetic epidemiology 2013;37:846-859.

- 126. Svenningsen S, Kirby M, Starr D, Coxson HO, Paterson NA, McCormack DG, Parraga G.What are ventilation defects in asthma? *Thorax* 2013.
- **127.** Tam A, Sin DD. Why are women more vulnerable to chronic obstructive pulmonary disease? *Expert review of respiratory medicine* 2013;7:197-199.
- 128. Tan WC, Bourbeau J, Hernandez P, Chapman KR, Cowie R, Fitzgerald JM, Aaron S, Marciniuk DD, Maltais F, Buist AS, O'Donnell DE, Sin DD. Bronchodilator responsiveness and reported respiratory symptoms in an adult population. *PloS one* 2013;8:e58932.
- 129. Thun GA, Imboden M, Ferrarotti I, Kumar A, Obeidat M, Zorzetto M, Haun M, Curjuric I, Couto Alves A, Jackson VE, Albrecht E, Ried JS, Teumer A, Lopez LM, Huffman JE, Enroth S, Bosse Y, Hao K, Timens W, Gyllensten U, Polasek O, Wilson JF, Rudan I, Hayward C, Sandford AJ, Deary IJ, Koch B, Reischl E, Schulz H, Hui J, James AL, Rochat T, Russi EW, Jarvelin MR, Strachan DP, Hall IP, Tobin MD, Dahl M, Fallgaard Nielsen S, Nordestgaard BG, Kronenberg

F, Luisetti M, Probst-Hensch NM. Causal and synthetic associations of variants in the SERPINA gene cluster with alpha1-antitrypsin serum levels. *PLoS genetics* 2013;9:e1003585.

- **130.** Tindale LC, Leach S, Ushey K, Daley D, Brooks-Wilson AR. Rare and common variants in the Apolipoprotein E gene in healthy oldest old. *Neurobiology of aging* 2013.
- **131.** Tranfield EM, Walker DC. The ultrastructure of animal atherosclerosis: What has been done, and the electron microscopy advancements that could help scientists answer new biological questions. *Micron* 2013;46:1-11.
- 132. Travis WD, Costabel U, Hansell DM, King TE, Jr., Lynch DA, Nicholson AG, Ryerson CJ, Ryu JH, Selman M, Wells AU, Behr J, Bouros D, Brown KK, Colby TV, Collard HR, Cordeiro CR, Cottin V, Crestani B, Drent M, Dudden RF, Egan J, Flaherty K, Hogaboam C, Inoue Y, Johkoh T, Kim DS, Kitaichi M, Loyd J, Martinez FJ, Myers J, Protzko S, Raghu G, Richeldi L, Sverzellati N, Swigris J, Valeyre D, Pneumonias AECoII. An official american thoracic society/european respiratory society statement: update of the international multidisciplinary classification of the idiopathic interstitial pneumonias. *American journal of respiratory and critical care medicine* 2013;188:733-748.
- **133.** Um SJ, Lam S, Coxson H, Man SF, Sin DD. Budesonide/Formoterol Enhances the Expression of Pro Surfactant Protein-B in Lungs of COPD Patients. *PloS one* 2013;8:e83881.
- 134. Utokaparch S, Sze MA, Gosselink JV, McDonough JE, Elliott WM, Hogg JC, Hegele RG.
   Respiratory Viral Detection and Small Airway Inflammation in Lung Tissue of Patients with
   Stable, Mild COPD. *Copd* 2013.
- **135.** van Dijk WD, Gupta N, Tan WC, Bourbeau J. Clinical Relevance of Diagnosing COPD by Fixed Ratio or Lower Limit of Normal: A Systematic Review. *Copd* 2013.
- **136.** van Eeden SF, Sin DD. Oxidative stress in chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: a lung and systemic process. *Canadian respiratory journal : journal of the Canadian Thoracic Society* 2013;20:27-29.
- 137. Vucic EA, Chari R, Thu KL, Wilson IM, Cotton AM, Kennett JY, Zhang M, Lonergan KM, Steiling K, Brown CJ, McWilliams A, Ohtani K, Lenburg ME, Sin DD, Spira A, Macaulay CE, Lam S, Lam WL. DNA Methylation is Globally Disrupted and Associated with Expression Changes in COPD Small Airways. Am J Respir Cell Mol Biol 2013.

- 138. Wacharasint P, Boyd JH, Russell JA, Walley KR. One size does not fit all in severe infection: obesity alters outcome, susceptibility, treatment, and inflammatory response. *Critical care* 2013;17:R122.
- 139. Wadell K, Webb KA, Preston ME, Amornputtisathaporn N, Samis L, Patelli J, Guenette JA, O'Donnell DE. Impact of Pulmonary Rehabilitation on the Major Dimensions of Dyspnea in COPD. *Copd* 2013.
- 140. Wadsworth SJ, Sandford AJ. Personalised medicine and asthma diagnostics/management.*Curr Allergy Asthma Rep* 2013;13:118-129.

**141.** Walley KR. Biomarkers in Sepsis. *Current infectious disease reports* 2013.

- Wang E, Chong K, Yu M, Akhoundsadegh N, Granville DJ, Shapiro J, McElwee KJ.
   Development of Autoimmune Hair Loss Disease Alopecia Areata Is Associated with Cardiac
   Dysfunction in C3H/HeJ Mice. *PloS one* 2013;8:e62935.
- Warner SM, Hackett TL, Shaheen F, Hallstrand TS, Kicic A, Stick SM, Knight DA.
   Transcription Factor p63 Regulates Key Genes and Wound Repair in Human Airway
   Epithelial Basal Cells. Am J Respir Cell Mol Biol 2013.
- 144. Wei W, Hou J, Alder O, Ye X, Lee S, Cullum R, Chu A, Zhao Y, Warner SM, Knight DA, Yang D, Jones SJ, Marra MA, Hoodless PA. Genome-wide microRNA and messenger RNA profiling in rodent liver development implicates mir302b and mir20a in repressing transforming growth factor-beta signaling. *Hepatology* 2013;57:2491-2501.
- **145.** Winstone TA, Man SF, Hull M, Montaner JS, Sin DD. Epidemic of Lung Cancer in Patients With HIV Infection. *Chest* 2013;143:305-314.
- Wong HR, Lindsell CJ, Pettila V, Meyer NJ, Thair SA, Karlsson S, Russell JA, Fjell CD, Boyd JH, Ruokonen E, Shashaty MG, Christie JD, Hart KW, Lahni P, Walley KR. A Multibiomarker-Based Outcome Risk Stratification Model for Adult Septic Shock. *Critical care medicine* 2013.
- 147. Wong J, Si X, Angeles A, Zhang J, Shi J, Fung G, Jagdeo J, Wang T, Zhong Z, Jan E, Luo H. Cytoplasmic redistribution and cleavage of AUF1 during coxsackievirus infection enhance the stability of its viral genome. FASEB journal : official publication of the Federation of American Societies for Experimental Biology 2013;27:2777-2787.

- **148.** Woodruff PG, Chatila W, Connett JE, Criner GJ, Curtis JL, Dransfield MT, Han MK, Lazarus SC, Marchetti N, Rogers TJ, Scanlon PD, Sin DD, Voelker H, Wendt C, Albert RK, for the CCRN. Tumour necrosis factor receptor 75 and risk for COPD exacerbation in the azithromycin trial. *The European respiratory journal* 2013.
- 149. Xiang YY, Chen X, Li J, Wang S, Faclier G, Macdonald JF, Hogg JC, Orser BA, Lu WY.
  Isoflurane Regulates Atypical Type-A gamma-Aminobutyric Acid Receptors in Alveolar Type
  II Epithelial Cells. *Anesthesiology* 2013;118:1065-1075.
- 150. Yamamoto M, Singh A, Ruan J, Gauvreau GM, O'Byrne PM, Carlsten C, Fitzgerald J, Boulet LP, Tebbutt SJ. Decreased miR-192 expression in peripheral blood of asthmatic individuals undergoing an allergen inhalation challenge. *BMC genomics* 2012;13:655.
- 151. Yamamoto M, Singh A, Sava F, Pui M, Tebbutt SJ, Carlsten C. MicroRNA Expression in Response to Controlled Exposure to Diesel Exhaust: Attenuation by the Antioxidant N-Acetylcysteine in a Randomized Crossover Study. *Environmental health perspectives* 2013;121:670-675.
- 152. Yanagawa B, Algarni KD, Singh SK, Deb S, Vincent J, Elituv R, Desai ND, Rajamani K, McManus BM, Liu PP, Cohen EA, Radhakrishnan S, Dubbin JD, Schwartz L, Fremes SE. Clinical, biochemical, and genetic predictors of coronary artery bypass graft failure. *The Journal of thoracic and cardiovascular surgery* 2013.
- 153. Yang J, Sin D, Leipsic J, McManus BM, Ignaszewski A. Cardiac sarcoidosis. BCMJ 2013;55.
- 154. Ye X, Hemida MG, Qiu Y, Hanson PJ, Zhang HM, Yang D. MiR-126 promotes coxsackievirus replication by mediating cross-talk of ERK1/2 and Wnt/beta-catenin signal pathways. *Cellular and molecular life sciences : CMLS* 2013.
- **155.** Zhang T, Smith MA, Camp PG, Carleton BC. High use of health services in patients with suboptimal asthma drug regimens: a population-based assessment in British Columbia, Canada. *Pharmacoepidemiology and drug safety* 2013.
- 156. Zhang T, Smith MA, Camp PG, Shajari S, Macleod SM, Carleton BC. Prescription drug dispensing profiles for one million children: a population-based analysis. *Eur J Clin Pharmacol* 2013;69:581-588.

**157.** Zhou S, Wright JL, Liu J, Sin DD, Churg A. Aging does not Enhance Experimental Cigarette Smoke-Induced COPD in the Mouse. *PloS one* 2013;8:e71410.

### Appendix C - Centre for Heart Lung Innovation 2013 Friday Seminar Series

### Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Friday Seminar Series 2013 Gourlay Conference Room, Fridays, 11:30 am –12:30 pm

2013						
Month	Day	Speaker	Host	Title of Lecture		
January	11	Dr. Khaled El Emam	Dr. Bruce McManus	"Sharing health data while protecting patient privacy"		
	18	Dr. Art Poon	Dr. Tillie Hackett	"Reconstructing the evolution of HIV within a patient"		
	25	Dr. John Boyd	N/A	"Portable cardiovascular ultrasound for shock: Clinical research at St Paul's"		
February	01	Claire Smits and Dr. Hackett, Francis and Walley	N/A	"What happened to the CFI: Celebrations, Future and Innovation"		
	08	Dr. Dina Greene	Dr. Don Sin	"Facilitating the Laboratory Diagnosis of Alpha-1-antitrypsin deficiency"		
	15	Dr. David Fedida	Dr. Tillie Hackett	"Late Sodium current as a new therapeutic target for diastolic dysfunction and arrhythmia"		
	22	NO SEMINA	NO SEMINAR SERIES THIS WEEK – FEST 2013			
March	01	Dr. Christopher Mody	Dr. Don Sin	"A Surprising Benefit of Tissue Microenvironment on Microbial Host Defense in Cryptococcus gattii infection"		
	08	Dr. Konrad Walus	Dr. Del Dorscheid	"Inkjet and 3D Printable Structures, Devices, and Tissues"		
	15	Dr. Joan Reibman	Dr. Del Dorschied	"Pollution and the mucosa: the epithelial-dendritic cell interface"		
	22	Dr. Tom Lagace	Dr Gordon Francis	"Regulation of circulating low- density lipoprotein cholesterol by PCSK9"		
	29	NO SEMINAR	SERIES THIS WEEK – GOOD	) FRIDAY		
April	05	Dr. Sina Gharib	Dr. Peter Pare	"Order from Chaos? How to Make Sense of the "Systems Approach" to Complex Diseases"		
	12	Dr. Jonathan Choy	Dr. Pascal Bernatchez	"Nitric oxide synthases in lung and blood vessel disease"		

				"Initiation of immune	
	19	Dr. Steve Georas	Dr. Chris Carlsten	responses in the lung: breaking	
				the epithelial barrier"	
				"Consequences of cigarette	
				smoke as a	
	26	Dr. Martin Stampfli	Dr. Don Sin	pro-inflammatory and immune	
				suppressive agent to smoking-	
				related diseases"	
				"Vicious cycles: interactions	
Мау	03	Dr. Bill Mohn	Dr. lim Hogg	between the immune system	
iviay	05		DI. JIII HOgg	and microbiota during the	
				course of disease"	
				"The Novel Role of PCSK9 in	
	10	Dr. Shirva Bashid	Dr. Gordon Francis	Liver and Intestinal	
	10	Dri onnya naoma		Apolipoprotein B	
				Dysregulation"	
	17	NO SEMINAR SERIES THIS WEEK – ATS			
	24	NO SEMINAR SERIES	THIS WEEK – YI FORUM / F	PATHOLOGY DAY	
				"Complex therapies for	
	21	Dr. Steve Onal	Dr. lim Russell	complex syndromes like sepsis:	
	21		Drivini ridooch	sirtuins, Thombomodulin and	
				epigenome editors"	
				"Imaging Pulmonary Structure-	
June	07	Dr. Miranda Kirby	Dr. Harvey Coxson	Function in COPD using	
	•			Hyperpolarized Noble Gas	
				Magnetic Resonance Imaging"	
				"Endoplasmic Reticulum (ER)	
	14	Dr. Gary Sieck	Dr. Chun Seow	Stress in Airway Smooth	
		,		Muscle: Relation to Asthma	
				Airway Hyper-Responsiveness"	
				"Mechanobiology of the airway	
	21	Prof. Linhong Deng	Dr. Chun Seow	smooth muscle cell and its	
				regulations in pathogenesis of	
				asthma"	
	[	NO SEMINARS IN .	IULY AND AUGUST		
		Dr. Murray Huff			
		Director, Vascular Biology Research		Activation of PPAR delta	
September	13	Group, Kobarts Research Institute	Dr. Gordon Francis	innibits aortic inflammation and	
		Protessor, Departments of Medicine		attenuates the progression of	
		and Biochemistry, The University of		atherosclerosis in LDLr-/mice"	
1	1	Western Ontario			

	20	Dr. Michael J. Sanderson Professor, Department of Microbiology and Physiological Systems University of Massachusetts Medical School	Dr. Chun Seow	"Ca2+ signaling in airway smooth muscle: exploring lung physiology with lung slices"
	27	Dr. Jean Bourbeau Director, Respiratory, Epidemiology and Clinical Research Unit (RECRU), Montreal Chest Institute, McGill University	Dr. Wan Tan	"Canadian Cohort Obstructive Lung Disease (CanCOLD): What have we learned and where should we go next?"
October	4	Dr. Sverre Vedal Director, Environmental and Occupational Health MPH Program Professor, Environmental and Occupational Adjunct Professor, General Internal Medicine University of Washington	Dr. Don Sin	"Outdoor particulate matter chemical components and subclinical (and clinical) cardiovascular disease"
	11	Dr. Jiri Frohlich Professor, Pathology and Laboratory Medicine, University of British Columbia	N/A	"The rationale for FH registry"
	18	Dr. Sean Fain Associate Professor of Medical Physics University of Wisconsin - Madison Wisconsin Institutes for Medical Research (WIMR)	Dr. Harvey Coxson	"Challenges and opportunities for image assessment of lung structure and function"
	25	Dr. Felix Ratjen Head, Division of Respiratory Medicine Sellers Chair of Cystic Fibrosis Professor, University of Toronto Hospital for Sick Children	Dr. Don Sin	"Functional assessment of early airway disease"
November	1	Dr. Alan Chait Division of Metabolism, Endocrinology and Nutrition Division Head Edwin L. Bierman Professor of Medicine University of Washington	Dr. Gordon Francis	"Adipose tissue inflammation, metabolic syndrome and atherosclerosis"
	8	Dr. John Wilson Professor, Department of Exercise and Nutrition Sciences University of Buffalo	Dr. Keith Walley	"C for Sepsis?: Studies of Vitamin C Therapy in Experimental Sepsis"

	15	Dr. Celia Greenwood Associate Professor Oncology; Epidemiology Centre for Clinical Epidemiology Lady Davis Research Institute Jewish General Hospital	Dr. Denise Daley	"Identifying regions and sites of interest in DNA methylation data: an exploration of possible approaches"
	22	Dr. Niklas Nielsen Consultant, Intensive Care, Helsingborg Hospital, Sweden Clinical Researcher, Lund University, Sweden	Dr. Jim Russell	"Target temperature 33°C versus 36°C after out-of-hospital cardiac arrest-a randomized clinical trial"
	29	Dr. Lee Romer Reader, Human and Applied Physiology, Centre for Sports Medicine and Human Performance, Brunel University	Dr. Jordan Guenette	" Respiratory influences on O2 transport and exercise performance in health"
December	6	Dr. Maarten van den Berge Pulmonary Physician, the University Medical Center Groningen Researcher, the Groningen Research Institute for Asthma and COPD The Netherlands	Dr. Tillie Hackett	"Genome-wide gene expression profiling, a tool for phenotyping in COPD"
	13	Dr. George P. Downey Professor Executive Vice President, Academic Affairs Department of Medicine Division of Pulmonary, Critical Care and Sleep Medicine Integrated Department of Immunology National Jewish Health	Dr. Bruce McManus	"If you can mend a broken heart, why is it so hard to repair the injured lung?"

Thank you to the following sponsors for their ongoing support of this seminar series: HLI Principle Investigators, the UBC Faculty of Medicine, BC Lung Association and the Heart and Stroke Foundation of BC & Yukon.

## **Appendix D** - Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Research In Progress Seminar Series 2013

### Centre for Heart Lung Innovation Research in Progress Seminar Series 2013 Gourlay Conference Room, Mondays – 9:00 am to 10:00 am

	7	Chris Fjell	"Computational and bioinformatic analysis of factors affecting patient outcomes in sepsis"	
January	14	Simone Thair	"SNPs involved in NF-kB signaling involved in outcome in septic shock"	
	21	Ye Qiu	"The heat shock protein Hsp70 stabilizes CVB3 genome via interacting with an RNA degradation factor"	
	28	Sima Allahverdian	"Smooth muscle cells are a major contributor to foam cell and macrophage-like cells in human atherosclerotic lesions"	
February	4	David Jaw	"LPS lung exposure induce atheroma destabilization and rupture in mice"	
	11	FAMILY DAY		
	18	Sam Wadsworth	"Tissue engineering the airway - changing the way we do research one organ at a time"	
	25	Cleo Leung	"Control tumor growth: is disrupting cell membrane remodeling the way to go?"	
March	4	Marc Sze	"The Bacterial Microbiome: What's All the Fuss About"	
	11	Dragos Vasilescu	"The small airway obstructive phenotype of COPD"	
	18	Chris Pascoe	"Smooth muscle gene expression in asthmatic lungs"	
	25	Xin Ye	"microRNA-126 in Coxsackievirus Infection Small RNA with a BIG Role"	
April	1	EASTER		
	8	Tracee Wee	"Integrins alpha v beta 6 and alpha v beta 8 and how they regulate epithelial-mesenchymal transitions"	
	15	Paul Hanson	"Regulation of translation initiation factor DAP5 during Coxsackievirus B3 infection"	
	22	lvy Hsu	"Role of Granzyme B in Diabetic Wound Healing"	
	29	Liam Brunham - Visiting Professor	"From Rare Diseases to Commonly Used Drugs genes impacting HDL, diabetes, and response to medication"	

	6	Gabriel Fung	"Understanding The Role of AlphaB-Crystallin in Viral-Induced Cardiomyopathy"	
Мау	13	Ma'en Obeidat	"Molecular mechanisms underlying variation in lung function measures"	
	20	VICTORIA DAY & ATS		
	27	Adam Linder	"The roles of Heparin-binding protein (HBP) in severe bacterial infections"	
June	3	Bradley Quon	"Blood Biomarkers of Disease Activity in Cystic Fibrosis Pulmonary Exacerbations"	
	10	Kunihiko Hiraiwa	"Pleiotropic effects of statins on lung diseases"	
September	9	Andy Trane	"Promoting Nitric Oxide Release for Treatment of Pulmonary Hypertension and Other Cardiovascular Diseases"	
	16	Jasemine Yang "The role of IL-13 receptors in airway epithe repair"		
	23	Jeffrey Liu	"Myosin filaments in smooth muscle cells do not have a constant length"	
	30	Bo Lan	"Cytoskeletal stiffness in active force depleted skinned smooth muscle"	
October	7	Loubna Akhabir	"Functional studies of asthma polymorphisms"	
	14	THANKSGIVING		
	21	Hyun-Kyoung Koo"MicroCT analysis of paraffin embedded lung tissue: Is small airway obstruction an early feature of COPD?"		
	28	Seti Boroomand	"TGFβ and WNT3a are required for valvular interstitial cell (VIC) calcification, in vitro"	
November	4	Leigh Parkinson	"Granzyme B in injury, inflammation and repair - evidence from an UV-induced chronic inflammatory skin model"	
	11	REMEMBRANCE DAY		
	18	Michael Seidman "Myocarditis: Is Vancouver the New D		
	25	Melissa Kaufman	"Adverse outcomes associated with Fresh Frozen Plasma transfusion in critically ill patients"	
December	2	Daisuke Kinose	"Comprehensive analysis of emphysema in alpha-1 antitrypsin deficiency Project overview"	
	9	Loubna Akhabir	Functional characterization of SNPs in two asthma genes"	



The Centre for Heart Lung Innovation St. Paul's Hospital Room 166 – 1081 Burrard Street Vancouver, British Columbia, V6Z 1Y6 Tel: 604.806.8346 / Fax: 604.806.8351 info@hli.ubc.ca / www.hli.ubc.ca





